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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Managem ent's D iscussion and Ana lysis 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANA LYSIS 

Morehead Sta te University's (the Univers ity) Ma nagement Discussion and Ana lysis (MD&A) of its fina ncic1I 

cond ition provides an o ve rview of the fi na ncial performance o f the Uni vers ity fo r the year ended June 30, 

2009. Management has prepa red this disrnssio n, a lo ng w ith the fina ncia l s ta tem ents and rela ted fooh1otes, to 

provide summa ry fi nnncial informa tion. MD&A sho uld be read in conjunction w ith the nccompanying 

financia l s ta te ments and foo t·no tcs. 

Financial Highlights 

• The financial statem ents indicate that the Uni vers ity's financial cond ition re ma ined stable at June 30, 

2009. Financia l o pe ratio ns w ere conducted in accordance with the a pproved budget pla n. 

• Total assets were S199 million versus S186 million a t June 30, 2008. Sig ni ficant componen ts of the 

assets include $10 million in cash, $22 millio n in accounts, grants a nd loans receivable, net, $13 million 

in investments a nd S 15 1 millio n in capita l assets net of deprecia tio n. 

• Tota l liabilities were $43 millio n vers us $46 millio n at June 30, 2008. The s ig nificant components o f the 

liabili ties were S26 m illio n in bonds, notes and capita l lease obligations, S8 m illion in accounts payable 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion .i nd Analysis, continued 

and accrued liabilities, $4 million in refundable grants and $5 million in deferred revenue and other 

liabilities. 

• Total net assets were $155 mil lion at June 30, 2009 and $ 141 million at June 30, 2008. Significant 

components of net assets include $125 million invested in capita l assets, net of deprecia tion and 

rela ted debt, $3 million in c>.pendable restricted ne t assets, $ 12 million of non-expendable restricted 

net assets and $15 million in unrestricted net assets . 
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• Operating revenues were $65 million il l Jun!.! 30, 2009 and $63 million a t June 30, 2008. Opl'rating 

expenses were Sl 37 million versus S135 million at June 30, 2008. This o-catcd an operating loss of S72 

million at June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008. 

• Net non-opera ting revenues were $64 mil lion for the ye<1 r ended June 30, 2009 and $65 million for 

thl' year ended June 30, 2008. Non-operating revenues were comprised primarily of s tate 

appropriations . The combina tion o f the ne t loss from operatio ns, the net non-operating revenues 

<1nd capital appropriations of $22 million, res ul ted in an increase in net assets of $14 million. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Managemen t's Discussion and A na lysis, continued 

Us ing the Annual Re port 

n,is annua l report cons ists of a series of finilncia l state ments, prepa red in accordance w ith Governmen tal 

Accounting Standa rds Board (GASB) State ment o. 35, Basic Fi11a11cia/ State111e11ts - and Mmwge111c11/'s 

Disrns~io11 ami Analysis - _fiJr P11/Jlic College~ amt U11iver~itics. These financial s ta tements focus on th e financia l 

condi tion of the Uni versity, the results of operations and cash Oows o f the Univers ity as a w hole. 

One of the most important questions ilsked about University finances is whethe r the University is bd ter off as 

a result of the year's activ ities. 17,e info rma tion needed to ilnswcr this question can be found in: 

• Stt1 tc mcnt of Net Assets, 

• the Stilte ment of 

Revenues, Expenses and 

Cha nges in Ne t Assets 

and 

• the Sta tement of Cash 

Flows. 

1l1esc sta tements present fin ancia l 

infonnil tion of the University in a 

fom1at s imilar to that used by 

corporations a nd present a long­

term view of the University's 

fi nances. To get a fLtll understand ing of the University's fi nancia l condition these statements shou ld be reviewed as 

a w hole and not ind ividually. Further important infonnation can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements, 

beginning on page 28 of the Financial Statements. 1l1e Notes to the Financial Statements contain policies, 

explilniltions and schedules that should be reviewed before, d uring ilnd a fte r reviewing the Sta tements in orde r to 

gd a complete understanding. 

3 



MOREHEAD STATE UNI VERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Ana lysis, continued 

The Statement of Net Assets 

TI1is sta tement includes all assets and liabilities. It is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby 

revenues and asscls are recognized when the service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized 

when others provide the service, regardless of when cash is exchanged. ·n1e University's net assets (the 

difference between assets and liabilities) are one indicator of the University's financinl health. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net assets can indicate improvement or erosion of the University's financial health. 

ChangL'S in net assets should be considered in conjunction with non-financial factors such as enrollment levels 

and conditions of facilities. 

TI1e Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

TI1is statement presents the revenues earned ,111d expenses incurred during the year. Activities arc reported as 

either operating or non-operating. GASB 35 requires s ta te appro priations and gifts to be classified as non­

operating revenues. Accordingly, the Univers ity will genera te a ne t operating loss prior to the addition of 

non-operating revenues. The utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as capita l assets, is reflected in the 

financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the 

cost of an asset over its expected useful life. 

The Statement of Cash Flows 

·n1is s tatement presents information rela ted to rnsh inflows 

and outflows, sumrnari;,:cd by operating, non-capital 

financing, capital finnncing and investing activities. An 

important factor to consider ,.,,hen eva luating financial 

viability is the University's ability to meet financia l 

obligations as they matu re. 

Reporting Entity 

Morehead State University is a component unit of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

4 



MO R EM EAD ST ATE UNI YERSfTY 

\ilanagcmcnt's D iscussion a nd Analysis, continued 

Assets 

Curren t assets 

Capita l assets 

O ther noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabi lities 

Current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Condensed Financial Information 
Statement of Net Assets (in tho usands) 

Invested in capital assets, net of re lated debt 

Restricted, expendable 

Restricted, noncxpendablc 

Unrestricted 

Total ne t assets 

5 

$ 

2009 

30,303 

151, 169 

17,221 

198,693 

16,446 

26,928 

43,374 

125,430 

3,384 

1"1,722 

14,783 

~ 15:i,31.2 

s 

2008 

37,424 

131,544 

17 420 

186,388 

15,561 

30,196 

45 757 

102,745 

8,570 

11,760 

17,556 

S 1'.:10,63] 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussio n a nd Ana lysis, continued 

2009 

Tota l Assets 
(millions) 

J une 30, 2009 

198.7 

186.4 

As of June 30, 2009, the Univers ity's total assets amoun t to approx ima tely S199 million vers us S"186 

millio n at Ju ne 30, 2008. Inves tment in capital assets, net o f depreciatio n , represented the Uni vers ity's 

largest asset, to taling $15"1 million compared to $131 million a t June 30, 2008. Cash and inves tme nts, 

tota ling $24 millio n a t June 30, 2009 and S•il mi ll ion a t June 30, 2008, were the Univers ity's next larges t 

.isset. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Ana lysis, con tinued 

Capital Assets, Net 
76% 

Assets 
(millions) 

June 30, 2009 

Accounts Rec, Gran ts 
& Loans 

Cash 
5% 

9% 

lnvento cy 
1% 

Receivables & Other 
Current Assets 

2% 

Total asse ts increased by $12.3 mi llio n during the year ended June 30, 2009. The principal areas o f change 

were: 

• cash and cash equivalents decreased approximately $17.1 million, 

• accounts, gra nts and loans receivable, ne t increased approximate ly $10.4 million, 

• rnpital assets, net of accumula ted depreciation, increc1sed approximately $19.6 million, 

• investments and other receivables decreased approximate ly S0.2 million 

Liabilities 

At June 30, 2009, the University's liabilities totaled approxima te ly S43 million vers us $46 million the 

previous year. Bonds, no tes payab le nnd capi ta l lease obligations for capital assets represented Si26 

million versus $30 millio n at June 30, 2008. 

7 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERS ITY 

Management's Discussiun .ind Analysis, continued 

2009 

Total Liabi lities 
(millions) 

June 30, 2009 

43.4 

45.8 

2008 

Total linbilities decreased by $2.4 millio n during the year ended June 30, 2009. This decrease was 

primarily due to a 53.2 million d ecrL•ase in bonds, notes and capita l lease obligations and an increase of 

50.8 million in deferred revenue and othe r liabilities. 

Net l\ssets 

Net assets a t June 30, 2009 totaled approximately S155 million compared to S141 million at June 30, 2008. 

Net assets invested in capital assets, ne t o f re la ted debt, totaled $125 mi llion versus $103 million at June 

30, 2008. Restricted net assets totaled 5 15 million compared to $20 million at June 30, 2008. Unrestricted 

net assets accounted for 515 million versus S18 million a t June 30, 2008. Total net assets increased by 514 

mi ll ion during the year ended June 30, 2009. 

8 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Net Assets l11vesterf i11 Capital Assets, Net o(Relnterf Debt 

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, increased by $22.7 million. This increase was 

primarily due to an increase of $22 million for building additions at June 30, 2009 versus a decrease of 
$1.6 million at June 30, 2008. Other increases resulted from an increase of $1.2 million for land 
improvements versus an increase of $0.2 million in the previous year and net increases in o ther capital 
assets of S2.0 million at June 30, 2009 verses net decreases of $17.6 million at June 30, 2008. Also, there 
were $3.2 million in payments of principal on debt compared to $17.9 m illion during fiscal year 2008. 
Decreases in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, were primarily due to current year 
depreciation of $7.9 million compared to $7.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2008 and from current 
yea r losses on disposals and sales of assets of $1.1 million compared to $3 million during fisca l year 2008. 
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Total Net Assets 
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125.4 

2008 

0 Unrestricted □Expendable □Non Expendendable □ Invested in cap1t:il assets, net of rdated debt 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN TV ERSITY 

tvlanagement's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Restricted Net Assets 

Restric ted ne t assets a rc su bjec t to stipulations made by entit ies external to the Uni vers ity that govern the 

use of these funds. Restricted net assets decreased by $5.2 million from the previous year to $ 15 mi llion. 

This was due to d ecreases in unexpended res tricted net assets . 

Restricted Net Assets 

June 30,2009 
R& I 

Repair & 

Replacement °""" 
0% 

Unexpended ........_ 

Loan 

1% 

11% 

Unrestricted Net Assets 

Endowment 

79% 

Unres tricted net assets decreased by $2.8 million from the previous year to $15 mi llion. Unrestricted net 

assets arc not subject to externa lly imposed restrictions. Hnwcvcr, subs tan tially all of the unrestricted ne t 

asset balance has been al locnted for the support of ao1 clemic programs and other initia ti ves, the 

completion of capital projects, o r working capital requirements . The a llocation of unres tricted net assets 

as of June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

10 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discuss ion and Analysis, contin ued 

A llocn tio11 of U11restricteti Net Assets (i11 tlzo11sn11ds) 

2009 

Wor king ca pital $ 6,347 

Allocated project fu nd s 520 

Capita l cons truction 2, 174 

Operating budgets 3,725 

Acc redita tions 50 
In te rnal reserves I 967 

Unrestricted net assets $ 14.7..8.3 

AJlocation of Unrestricted N e t Assets 
June 30, 2009 

Accreditations 
<1% 

Internal 
Reserves 

13% 

Operating 
Budgets 

25% 

Capital J Construction 
15% 

11 

Working Capital 
43% 

Allocated Project 
Funds 

4% 

2008 

s; 5,668 

820 

6,329 

2,156 

23 

2 ,560 

Si 175:>6 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discuss ion and Analysis, continued 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets (in thousands) 

Operating Revenues 

Student tuition and fees, net 

Federal grants and contracts 

State and local grants and contracts 

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 

Sales and services of educational activities 

A uxiliary ente rprises 

Other operati ng revenue 

Total opera ting revenue 

Operating Expenses 

Educational and general 

A uxi liary enterprises 

Depreciation 

Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Grants and contracts 

State appropriations 

lnvestment income, ne t 

In terest on capital assets - d ebt re lated 

Net non-operating revenues 

Loss before other revenues, 

expenses, gains or losses 

Capita l appropria tions 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

2009 

$ 31,325 

11,726 

1,939 

692 

2,709 

13,327 

3 81 I 

65,529 

116,617 

11,523 

7,867 

L053 

137,060 

<7L531) 

18,531 

45,831 

662 

(U93) 

63,831 

(7,700) 

22,388 

14,688 

140,631 

~ 155)19 

12 

2008 

$ 28,796 

10,549 

3,172 

866 

2,148 

12,854 

4,208 

62,593 

111,842 

12,251 

7,414 

2,994 

134,501 

(71,908) 

18,125 

47,311 

1,289 

(1,588) 

65,137 

(6,771) 

20.305 

13,534 

127.097 

i 140,631 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Ana lysis, continued 

Reve1111es 

Total operating revenues were approximately $65 million for the year ended June 30, 2009 and 

approximately $62 million for the yea r ended June 30, 2008. The most significant sources of operating 

revenue for the Univers ity arc net student fees $31 million, federa l grants and contracts $12 million, 

auxiliary enterprises $'13 million, state and local gran ts S2 million and other revenues including, private 

grants and sa les and services of educational activities, $7 million. 

Grants &Contracts, 
Non operating 

12% 

State Appropnations, 
Non operating 

30% 

TOTAL 
REVENUES 

Capital Appropriations, 
Non operating 

15% 

Sources of Revenues 
June 30, 2009 

13 

Operating 
Revenue 

43% 

Srudent tuition 
&fees, net 

21% 

Federal grants 
&contracts 

8% 

State & loc:il 

operating 
revenue 

2% 

Sales &services 
o f edu:::.tional 

activities 
2% 

Auxiliary 
enterprises 

9% 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Opera ting expenses totaled approximately S137 million compared tu $!35 million at June 30, 2008. Of this 

amount, approximately Sl-i? million was used ior educational and gencrn l expenses related to func tions 

such as ins truction, research and public service. 

Operating Expenses 
June 30. 2009 

Depreciation~ 
6% 

Auxiliary 
enterprises ---

8% 

Cns/1 Flows 

Another way to assess the financial health of an ins titution is to 

look at the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of the " 

Sta tement of Cash Flmvs is to provide information about the cash 

receipts and cash payments made by the Univers ity during the 

period. The Statement of Cash Flows also helps financial 

s tatement readers assess: 

• the University's ability to generate future net cash flows 

• the University's ability to meet obligations as they 

become due and 

• the University's need for external financing. 

14 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Manageme n t's Discu ssio n and A na lysis, con tinued 

Cash Provided By (Used In): 

Statement of Cash Flows (In Thousands) 

Year ended June 30, 

2009 2008 

Operating acti v ities 

Nonca pita l fina ncing acti vities 

$ (71,775) $ (59,492) 

Capital and re la ted fina ncing activi ties 

Investing activities 

Net (decrease) inc rease in cash 

Cas h, beginning of the year 

Cash, end of the year $ 

64,362 

(10,418) 

754 

(17,077) 

27,581 

rn,:;04 s 

Major sou rces of funds included in opera t ing activities are s tuden t tuit ion a nd fees, S20.4 mil lion versus 

$23.9 millio n the prev io us yea r a nd g rants and contracts, $13.5 millio n compared to $19.5 millio n the 

previo us year. The la rgest cash pay me nts for o pe ra ting acti v ities w e re m ade to employees $60.3 millio n 

versus $58.6 m illion the p revio us yea r a nd su ppliers S57.8 m illio n com pa red to 564.3 million thL' p revio us 

year. 

expended o n the cons tructio n a nd acquis itio n of capitnl nssets. 

15 

The lc1 rgcst cas h receipt in the 

no ncnpita l fina ncing activ ities 

grou p is the opcrnting 

appropriation from the 

Commo nwealth of Kentucky of 

$45 .8 million versus $47.3 

millio n the previous year and 

cash used by capita l a nd re la ted 

fina ncing activ ities is p rima rily 

65,436 

(2,053) 

4447 

8,338 

19,243 

2Z.S81 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Cnpitn l Assets 

Capitnl assets, net of accumulated depreciation (but not of re la ted debt), to ta led approximately 5151.2 

million at June 30, 2009 versus S131.5 mil lion at June 30, 2008. This represents a net increase of $19 .7 

million over June 30, 2008. Sig nificant changes to capitnl assets dming fiscal 2008 - 2009 included: 

Buildings and struc tures 

Library additions, equipment and vehicles 

Net change in construction in progress 

Decrense in accumulated depreciation, ne t 

$ 23.2 million 

2.1 million 

(0.6) m illion 

(5.0) million 

At year-end, the Univers ity hnd $26.3 million in outstand ing d ebt versus £29.S million the previous year. 

This includes $21.2 million in bond payable compared to $23.9 million at June 30, 2008. In addition, the 

University had capital lease obligations of 55.1 million compared to $5.6 million the previous year-end. 

Outstanding Debt 
June 30, 2009 

Capital Lease 
obligations 

19% 

Consolidated 
Educational 

18% 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, concluded 

Debt, co11ti1111erl 

The Univers ity's debt is summarized by type of d ebt ins trument as fo llows (in thousands): 

General Receipts bonds 

Consol ida ted Educational buildings revenue bonds 

Capita l lease obligations 

2009 

S 16,665 

4,610 

5,064 

S 26.339 

Debt outstanding decreased approxima te ly $3.2 million from the encl o f the prior yea r. 

FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS 

·n1e following a re known filcts and c ircumstances Iha ! could affect future financia l results: 

June 30, 
2008 

$18,320 

5,530 

5,674 

c:; 29.524 

• The Univers ity's Boa rd of l~egents has approved an operati ng budget for the fi scal year end ing 

June 30, 20W totc1ling $]24 mill ion. 

• Under the 2009-IO tuition model, a ll students will be assessed tu ition on a per credit hour basis. 

The 2009-10 tu ition rate includes a 4 ... /o incrense in the unde rg raduc1tt• res ident pe r credit hour rate 

with a 70% discount on undergrad uate hours enrolled above 12. 

17 



DE AN OOH.TON FORD 

Members of U,e Board o f Regents and 

Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 
Morehead Sta te University 
Morehead, Kentucky 

Secretary of Finance and 
Administration Cabinet of the 
Commonwealth of Kent1.1cky 

Independent Auditors' Report 

cpas co11s11lta11ts b11si11ess ad:1isors 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morehead Sta te Univers ity (the "University") and it's 
discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and for the yea rs then ended, which collectively 
comprise the University s basic financial s ta tements as listed on the table of contents. These financial statements a re 
the respons ibility of the Univers ity s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

s tatements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Sta tes of America 
and the s tandards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment A ra/iting Standards issued by the 
Com ptrolle r Cenernl of the United States. TI1ose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materia l misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
a lso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overa ll financia l sta tement presentation. We believe that our aud its provide a reasonable basis for 

our opinion. 

ln our opin ion, the financial s tatements referred to above present fairly, in a ll materia l respects, the respective 
financial position of the University and its discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the 
respective changes in its net assets and, where applicable, its cash nows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Governme11/ Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2009, on our 
consideration of the Univers ity s internal conh·ol over financia l reporting and on our tes ts of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and o ther matte rs. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of tha t testing, and not to provide an opinion over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemnrenl A11diti11g Standards and should be considered in 

assessing the results of our audits. 

18 
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Independent Auditors' Report, continued 
Page 2 

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 17 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements. The supplemental information contained 
on pages 57 through 58 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements of the University. The supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

October 29, 2009 
Lexington, Kentucky 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statement o f Net Assets 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts, grants and loans receivable, ne t 

Prepaid interest 
Inventories 
O ther current assets 

Total current asse ts 

Noncurrent assets: 
Accounts, grants and loans receivable, net 
Prepaid interes t 
Investments 
Capital assets, ne t 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilit ies and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
O ther current liabi lities 
13onds, notes and capita l lease obligations, 
current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Bonds, notes and capita l lease obligations, 

noncurrent portion 
Advances from federal government for student loans 

Total long-term liabil ities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net o( related debt 
Restricted: 

Expendable 
Nonexpendable 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes. 

20 

$ 

2009 

10,503,628 
18,314,200 

124,649 
1,352,497 

8 446 
30,303,420 

3,687,184 
476,137 

13,057,687 
151,169,028 
168,390,036 

198,693,456 

8,398,720 
3,874,099 

914,028 

3,259,128 
16,445,975 

23,080,105 
3,848,297 

26,928.402 

43,374,377 

125,430,581 

3,383,660 
11,722,020 
14,782,818 

$.155,319.,022 

$ 

2008 

27,581,056 
7,925,010 

124,649 
1,674,861 

11 8,295 
37,423,871 

3,670,066 
600,786 

13,149,065 
131,544,122 
148,964,039 

186,387,910 

8,424,392 
3,142,456 

809,228 

3,184,960 
15,561,036 

26,339,235 
3,856,503 

30,195,738 

45,756.774 

102,745,364 

8,569,611 
11,759,719 
17,556.442 

S HQ,6al.136 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Accrued interest receivable 
Pledges receivable, net 

Assets 

Net investment in capital leases, current 
Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
investments 
Cash surrender value - life insurance 
Property and equipment, net 
Pledges receivable, net 
Net investment in capital leases 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Other current liabilities 
Annuities payable 
Due to Morehead State University 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
funds held in trus t for Morehead State University 
Annuities payable 
Due to Morehead State University 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabi lities and net assets 

See accompanying 110/es. 
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2009 

$ 104,344 
14,068 

313,832 
88,706 

520,950 

23,150,575 
93,723 

357,695 
325,512 

1,097,959 
25,025,464 

S--25,.5.16,il.1 

$ 

21,500 
112,582 

8,446 
142,528 

11,329,592 
445,015 

11,774,607 

11,917,135 

(139,683) 
621,210 

13,147,752 
13,629,279 

US,5%,ill 

2008 

$ 432,070 
11,013 

376,639 
140 988 
960,710 

27,829,257 
94,047 

243,976 
490,085 

1,186,665 
29,844,030 

S 3Q,804,2.4Q 

$ 11,170 

87,582 
26,900 

125,652 

11,329,592 
388,591 

80,700 
11,798,883 

11,924,535 

241,928 
5,373,253 

13,265,024 
18,880,205 

$ 3Q,8Q!:l,Z10 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 

Operating revenues: 

Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship 
allowances of $22,441,060 and $18,521,080) $ 31,324,714 S 28,795,640 

Federal grants and contracts 11,725,610 10,548,697 
State and local grants and contracts 1,939,422 3,172,607 
Nongovernmenta l g rants and contracts 691,853 866,247 
Sales and services of educationa l acti vities 2,708,906 2,148,093 
Auxiliary enterprises: 

Residence halls (net o f scho larship a llowances 
of $89,673 and $81,462) 7,807,862 7,595,819 

Bookstore 4,364,059 4,149,390 
O ther auxiliaries 1,155,433 1,108,324 

O ther operating revenues 3,810,981 4,207,762 
Total o perating revenues 65,528,840 62,592,579 

Operating expenses: 

Education and general: 
Instruction 45,398,891 46,438,012 
Research 1,607,834 2,592,195 
Public service 7,349,513 7,087,842 
Library 3,116,931 3,102,434 
Academic support 10,563,258 8,470,695 
Student services 12,698,870 11,758,889 
lnstilutional support 14,643,930 13,172,964 
Operation and maintenance of plant 8,558,027 8,415,798 
Depreciation 7,866,764 7,413,487 
Student aid 12,680,934 10,804,243 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Residence Halls 6,541,670 7,222,309 
Bookstore 3,826,276 3,906,210 
O ther auxi liaries 1,154,696 1,122,146 

Other operating expenses 1,052,784 2,994,l14 
To tal operating expenses 137,060,378 134,501,338 

Operating loss (71,531,538) (71,908,759) 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, concluded 

Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Grants and contracts 
State appropriations 

Investment income (net of investment expense 
o f $1,654 and $84,225) 
Inte rest on capital asset-related debt 

Net nonoperating revenues 

Loss before capital appropriations 

Capital appropriations 

Increase in ne t assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See acco1npm1ying notes. 
23 

2009 

18,531,568 
45,830,676 

662,2U 
{1,192,779} 
63,831,677 

(7,699,861) 

22,387,804 

14,687,943 

140,631,136 

$ 155,319.079 

2008 

18,125,582 
47,310,971 

1,288,879 
(1,588,126} 
65,137,306 

(6,771,453) 

20,305,535 

13,534,082 

127,097,054 

$.JAQ,631 136 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues and other support: 

Contributions s 247,549 $ 1,175,322 $ 441,299 $ 1,864,170 

Other revenue and gains (losses): 

Investment income (loss): 

Interest and dividend inrome, net 37,241 1,193,300 1,230,541 

Reali.u..'CI and unrealized losses (20,038) (6,184,779) (6,204,817) 

In-kind contributed services 94,667 94,667 

Other income 7,462 455,223 462,685 

Annuities payable adjustment (61,%1) (61,964) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by paymenL'> 2,463,537 (2,463,537) 

Total revenues and other support 2,768,454 (5,824,471) 441,299 (2,614,718) 

Expenses: 

Program expenses: 

Contributions to Morehead St.1tc 

University for: 

Academic progr.1ms 1,114,031 1,114,031 

Athletics 151,614 151,614 

University support: 

Operations and mnterials 500,978 500,978 

Student financial aid 582,036 582,036 

Atl1letics 36,468 36,468 

Total program expenses 2,385,127 2,385,U7 

General and administrative 181,136 181,136 

Fundraising 69,945 69,945 

Total expenses 2,636,208 2,636,208 

Change in net assets 132,246 (5,824,471) 411,299 (5,250,926) 

Net assets, beginning of yenr 241,928 5,373,253 13,265,024 18,880,205 

Net assets, adjustment (513,857) 1,072,428 (558,571) 

Net assets, end of year 5__(139,663J s 621,llil S.13,l'!Z, 7 52 SJ.3,629,212 

See nccornpanying 11otes. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UN IVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. 

Revenues ,:md other support: 

Contributions 

Other revenue and gains (losses): 

Investment income: 

Interest and d ividend income, net 

Reali.zed and unrealized gains 

In-kind contributed services 

O ther income 

Annuities payable adjustment 

Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenues and other support 

Expenses: 

Program expenses: 

Contributions to Morehc;id State 

University for: 

Academic prog rams 

Athletics 

Univers ity support: 

Operations and materials 

Student financial aid 

Athletics 

Total program expenses 

General and administraUve 

Fund raising 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See nccompnnyi11g 11otes. 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2008 

Unrestricted 

$ 131,952 

43,788 

2,348 

64,836 

1,972 

(79,565) 

2.509,272 

2,674,603 

1,230,696 

277,042 

357,591 

561,939 

63 438 

2,490,706 

162,860 

73 738 

2.727,304 

(52,701) 

294.629 

$ -2il,228 

25 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ ·r,241,998 

1,891,786 

(3,477,580) 

608,121 

(2,509,272) 

(2,2-14, 94 7) 

(2,244,947) 

7,618.200 

$ 5,37,3,253 

Pennanently 
Restricted 

$ 313,378 

313,378 

313,378 

12.951,646 

S.13,26.5~024 

Total 

$ 1,687,328 

1,935,574 

(3,475,232) 

64,836 

610,093 

(79,565) 

743,034 

1,230,696 

277,042 

357,591 

561,939 

63.438 

2,490,706 

162,860 

73 738 

2,727.304 

(1,984,270) 

20,864.475 

$l8,88_Q,2Q5 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Tuition and fees 
Grants and contracts 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Capital appropriations, not yet funded 
Loans issued to students 
Collection of loans issued to st·udents 
Auxiliary enterprises: 

Residence halls 
Bookstore 
Other auxiliaries 

Sales and services of educational activities 
Other receipts 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

Nonoperating grants and contracts 
State appropriations 

Ne t cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Capital appropriations 
Purchase of capital assets 
Decrease in advances from federa l government for 

student loan 
Issuance of new bonds 
Principal paid on capital debt and leases 
Interest paid on capital debt and leases 

Net cash used in capita l and related 

financing acti vities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Interest received on investments, net 
Changes in investments, net 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

26 

2009 

$ 20,352,366 

13,498,911 

(57,761,428) 
(60,327,810) 

(7,234,916) 

(724,457) 

658,227 

7,896,709 
4,180,661 

1,166,536 

2,708,906 
3,810,981 

(71,775,314} 

18,531,568 

45,830,676 
64,362,244 

22,387,804 

(28,544,454) 

(8,206) 

(3,184,962) 

(1,068,130) 

(10,417,948) 

662,212 

91,378 
753,590 

(17,077,428) 

27.581.056 

$ 10,503,628 

$ 

2008 

23,932,828 

19,497,077 

(64,331,986) 

(58,638,285) 

(216,835) 

737,132 

7,678,931 

4,356,394 

1,136,757 

2,148,093 
4,207,762 

(59,492,132) 

18,125,582 

47,310,971 

65,436,553 

20,305,535 

(20,247,844) 

(189,757) 

18,320,000 
(17,927,367) 

(2,313.561) 

(2,052.994) 

1,288,879 

3,157,798 
4.446,677 

8,338,104 

19,242.952 

S 22,.281,056 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Cash flows, concluded 

Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 

Reconciliation of operating loss 
to net cash used in operating activities: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

net cash used in operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Bad debt expense 
Changes in assets and liabi lities: 

Receivables, net 
Inventories 
O ther current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash used in operating acti vities 

See nccompa11ying notes. 
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2009 

$ (71,531,538) 

7,866,764 
1,052,784 
2,106,969 

(12,513,277) 
322,364 
109,849 
(25,672) 
731,643 
104 800 

...$.lZl ,225 Jlll 

$ (71,908,759) 

7,413,487 
2,994,114 

392,897 

411,465 
251,693 

2,983 
700,790 
157,670 

91 528 

_$_(52,122.132) 



MOREHEAD ST ATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the f-inancial Statements 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

Morehead State University (the Universi ty) is a regional, coeducational, public institution of higher 
education offering general and liberal arts programs and pre-professional and professional training 
in education and various other fields at both the undergraduate and graduate levels. Located in 
Morehead, Kentucky, the Unive rsity has provided educational service to the Commonwea lth of 
Kentucky s ince 1887. 

Reporting Entity 

The University is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and is included in the 
general-purpose financial statements of the Commonwe<1lth. The Morehead State University 
Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the 
University. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-rais ing organization to supplement the 
resources that are available to the University in support of its programs. The f-oundation's Board of 
Directors is self-perpetuating and consists of g raduates and friends of the University. A lthough the 
University does not control the timing or amou nt of receipts from the foundation, the majority of 
the resources the foundation ho lds and invests are restricted by the donors to the activities of the 
University . Because these res tricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the 
benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the Univers ity and is 
discretely presented in the University's financia l statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

1l1c accompanying financial s tatements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (CASB). The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned 

and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. ln accordance with CASB 
Statement No. 35, Basic Fina11cial Statements - and Ma11ageme11t 's Discussio11 a11d A11alysis - for Public 
Colleges and Universities (GASB No. 35) and subsequent standards issued by GASB, the University 
reports as a 13L1siness Type Act ivity (BTA). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or in 
part by fees chnrged to external parties for goods and services. 

CASB No. 35 establishes s tandards for external financial reporting for public colleges and 
universities and requires that resollrces be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the 
following net asset categories: 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquis ition, 
construction or improvement o f those assets. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNI V ERSITY 

Notes to the r:inancia l Sta tements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

13asis of Presentation. continued 

• Res t ricted: 

Expendable- Net assets w hose use by the Univers ity is subject to externally imposed 
s tipulations that can be fulfill ed by actio ns of the University pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

No11expe11dab/e- Net assets su bject to externa lly imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by the Univers ity. Such assets includ e the Univers ity's 
permanent endowment funds. 

• Unrestricted: Net assets whose use by the Uni vers ity is not subject to externally imposed 

s tip ulations. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action o f 
management or the Board of Regents or may otherw ise be limited by contractual 
agreements w ith outside parties. 

The financial s tatement p resentation requi red by GASB No. 35 is intended to provide a 
comprehensive, en tity-wide perspective of the Univers ity's .issets, liabili ties, net assets, revenues, 
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows. 

Pursuan t to GASB Statement No. 20, Acco1111ti11g rmd Fi11a11cial Reporting for Proprietary Funds 1111d Other 
Governmental Entities That Use Propriet.anJ Fund Accounting, the Univers ity has elected to apply the 
provis ions of all relevant pronouncemen ts of the financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) that 
were issued on or before November 30, 1989 and do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

Allowance for Doubtfu l Accounts 

The allowance for d oubtful accounts is established through a provision fo r doubtful accounts charged 
to expense. ll1e allowance represents an amount which, in management's judgment, will be adequate 
to absorb probable losses on existing accounts thc1 t may become uncollectible. 

Inventories 

Univers ity s tore inventories representing approximately 47% and 60% of tota l inventories at June 30, 
2009 and 2008, respectively, are sta ted at the lower of cost (retail inventory method) or market. The 
remainder of the inventories is s tated at the lower of moving-c1vcrage-cost o r market. 

Investments 

TI1e University values investments at fa ir value based on quoted market prices. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN1VERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Inves tments, continued 

lnvestment income consists of interest and d ividend income and the net change for the year in the fair 
value o( investments carried at fair value. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost for purchased assets and at fair value at date of donation in the case of 
gifts. Expendfrures of greater than $1,000 which increase values or extend useful lives of the respective 
assets are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
Depreciation o( assets is computed using lhe s traight-line method over the assets estimated useful lives. 
The University capitalizes, but does not depreciate, works of art and his torical treasures that are held for 
exhibition, education, research and public service. Estimated Jives used for depreciation purposes are as 
follows: 

Classification 
Land improvements 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
Library books 

Accrued Vacation Pav 

Estimated Life 
20 years 
50 years 
5-9 years 
5-15 years 
IO years 

Accrued vacation pay is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the statement of net 
assets and represen ts earned vacation available to employees at current compensa tion rates. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue includes amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been 
earned. Deferred revenue also includes tuition billed on or before June 30th fo r future terms. 

Advances from Federal Government for Student Loans 

Funds provided by the United States Government under the Federal Perkins Loan program are loaned 
lo qualified students and may be reloaned after collections. These funds are ultimately refundable to 
the United States Government and, therefore, are recorded as a liability in the accompanying financial 
s tatements. Federally funded financial aid programs are subject to special audits. Such audits could 
result in claims against the resources o f the University. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Notes to the Financia l Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of S ignificant Accounting Policies, continued 

Restricted Asset Spending Policy 

The University's policy is that restrictions on assets cannot be fulfilled by the expenditure of 
unrestr icted funds for similar purposes. The determination on whether restricted or unrestricted funds 
are expended for a particular purpose is made on a case-by-case basis. Restricted funds remain 
restricted until spent for the intended purpose. 

Operating Activities 

·n,e University defines operating activities, as reported on the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets, as those that generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments 
received for providing goods and services and payments made for services and goods received. 
Nearly all of the University's expenses are from exchange transactions. Certain significant revenues 
relied upon for operations, such as s tate appropriations, gifts and investment income, are recorded as 
non-operating revenues, in accordance with CASB No. 35. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparal'ion o f financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Lhe United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
o f the financial s tatements and the reported revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual resu lts could differ from the estimated amounts. 

Income Taxes 

As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is gene rally exempt from 
federal and state income taxes under Section 115(1) o f the lnterna l Revenue Code, as a mended and a 
similar provision of s tate law. However, the University is subject to federal income tax on any 
unrelated business taxable income. 

Reclassifications 

Certa in reclassifications have been made to the 2008 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Assets presentation to correspond to the current year classification. Total net assets and total 
changes in net assets are unchanged due to these reclassifications. 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The s tatement o f net assets classification "cash and cash equiva lents" includes all readily available 
sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposi ts, deposits with the Commomvealth of 
Kentucky, certificates of deposit and temporary investments in marketable securities with original 
maturities less than three months. 

The state treasurer requi res that all s tate funds be insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC), collateralized by securities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank or invested in U.S. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial State ments, continued 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, contjnued 

Government obligations. The University's d eposits with the sta te treasurer a re pooled with funds of 

other state agencies and then, in accordance with statutory limitations, placed in financial 

institutions or invested as the sta te treasurer may d e te rmine, in the state's name. 

The Univers ity requires that balances on d eposit with financial institutions be insured by FDIC or 

colla teralized by securities held by the cogni7.ant Federal Rese rve Bank, in the Univers ity's name. 

Cu stodial credit risk for depos its is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Univers ity's 

deposits may not be re turned to the Univers ity. As a means of limiting its exposure to losses from 

custodial c redit risk, the University's depos its and investments are held by the s tate treasurer, 

collateralized by securities in the University's name, insured by the FDIC or in the University's 
name. 

/\t June 30, 2009 and 2008, the University had pe tty cash funds totaling $91,839 and $110,539, 
respectively and depos its as reflected by bank balances as follows: 

Insured, commercial banks 

Uninsured, commercia l banks; collate ral he ld by 

pledging ins titution's agent in the University's name 
Maintained by Commonwealth o f Kentucky 

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, investments cons is ted of: 

Insured and registered, with securities he ld by the 

counterparty o r by its trust department or agent, 
in the Univers ity's name: 

Money market funds - res tric ted for capital purposes 

Equity mutual funds 
Money market funds 

Certificate of deposit 

Res tricted assets he ld by the Morehead Sta te 
University Foundation, inc. 

Total investments 

32 

$ 

2009 

274,656 

8,572,505 
1,564,628 

S 10.411,78~ 

2009 

$ 1,335,439 

293,085 

931 
1,629,455 

98,640 

11,329,592 

$ 13,057.687 

2008 

$ 117,266 

18,058,467 

9,294.784 

$..27.470.517 

$ 1,348,243 

303,072 

74,209 

1,725,524 

93,949 

11,329,592 

$...1..3,149.065 



MOREHEAD STATE UNI VERSITY 

No tes to the Financial Sta tements, continued 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Restricted investments for capital purposes are comprised of amounts invested for sinking fund and 
debt service reserves. The Univers ity may legally invest in direct obligations o f and other 
obligations guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities 
and in bank repurchase agreements. It m ay also invest to a limited extent in equity securities. 

Univers ity investments held by the Foundation are comprised of the Regional Univers ity Excellence 
Trus t Fund endo wment and o ther s imila r endowments (see Note 13). Assets held by the Foundabon 

are invested primarily in an in vestment pool managed by the Foundation and are carried at fa ir 
value. 

The assets in the Fo undation investment pool at June 30, 2009 and 2008, are invested as follows: 

Percentage of pool invested in: 
Regis tered investment companies equi ty fu nds 
Reg is tered investment companies fixed income funds 

Total 

fnteres t Rate Risk 

2009 2008 

61% 
39% 

10Q% 

61 % 
39% 

Interest rate risk is the risk tha t d1anges in interest rates will adversely affect the fa ir value of an 

investment. Th e Uni versity does not have a formal policy to specifically limit investment maturities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses a ris ing from increasing interest ra tes. 

Concentration o f C redit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk o f loss a ttributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a sing le issuer. The Univers ity d oes not have a formal policy for concentration of credit 
risk. 

Cu stodial Credit Risk 

For an inves tment, custodial credit risk is the risk tha t, in the event of the fa ilure o f the counterparty, 
the University will not be able to recover the value of its investments or colla teral securities that are in 
U1e possession of an outside party. The University does not have a forma l policy for custod ial credit 
risk. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

3. Accounts, Grants and Loans Receivable 

Accounts, grants and loans receivable consist of the following as of June 30: 

2009 2008 

Student tuition and fees $5,136,532 $4,374,188 

Financing and interest 2,481,088 12,648 

Capital appropriations 7,234,916 

Student loans 3,778,359 3,763,082 

Grants and contracts 3,795,116 4,042,302 

Auxiliary enterprises 835,083 661,961 

Other 215,548 103,751 

23,476,642 12,957,932 

A llowance for doubtful accou nts (1,475,258) (1,362,856) 

22,001,384 11,595,076 

Current portion (18,314,200) (7, 925/JI 0) 

Noncu rrent portion _$ 3,687.184 $ 3.6ZQ,Q6.6 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

4. Capital Assets, Net 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2009, are summarized as follows: 

Land and improvements 

Buildings 

Library books 

Vehicles 

Equipment and livestock 

Datatel 

Art collection 

Construction in progress 

Accumulated 

Land improvements 

Buildings 

Library books 

Vehicles 

Equipment and livestock 

Datatel 

Capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 17,148,975 

169,274,638 

20,419,259 

2,199,257 

16,653,040 

4,191,145 

781,825 

14,288,240 

244,956,379 

5,500,736 

78,462,097 

15,850,995 

1,925,149 

9,200,070 

2,473,210 

113,412,257 

$.131,544,122 

Additions 

$ 1,408,909 

25,172,361 

1,111,003 

256,355 

1,702,835 

6,545 

15,000 

23,620,874 

53,293,882 

502,844 

3,674,080 

925,831 

147,661 

1,777,580 

838,768 

7,866,764 

$.JS,422(118 
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Reductions 

$ 210,000 

3,126,381 

1,036,406 

24,288,563 

28,661,350 

2,197,366 

661,772 

2,859,138 

$ 25.802.212 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 18,347,884 

191,320,618 

21,530,262 

2,455,612 

17,319,469 

4,197,690 

796,825 

13,620,551 

269,588,911 

6,003,580 

79,938,811 

16,776,826 

2,072,810 

10,315,878 

3,311,978 

118,419,883 

$.Jfil.169.028 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

4. Capital Assets, Net, continued 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2008, are summnrized as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Land .ind improvements $ 16,904,811 $ 244,164 $ 

Bu ildings 170,849,668 1,739,797 3,314,827 

Library books 19,295,152 1,124,107 

Vehicles 2,175,829 45,067 21,639 

Equipment and livestock 36,219,467 3,706,963 23,273,390 

Datatel 4,109,184 81,961 

Art collection 73,891 707,934 

Construction in progress 1,529,882 14,717,010 1,958,652 

251,157,884 22,367,003 28,568,508 

Accumulated Deweciation 

Land imp rovements 5,012,820 487,916 

Buildings 77,680,553 3,546,794 2,765,250 

Library books 14,904,732 946,263 

Vehicles 1,778,707 168,081 21,639 

Data tel 1,639,842 833,368 

Equipment and livestock 28,437,351 1,447.982 20,685,263 

129,454,005 7,430,404 23,472,152 

Capital assets, net llil,203,872 $ l:11236,599 $ 5!02g,3.56 

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, are as follows: 

Payable to vendors and contractors 

Accrued vacation 

Accrued salaries and other liabilities 
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$2,142,178 

2,207,159 

4,049,383 

$8,398,720 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 17,148,975 

169,274,638 

20,419,259 

2,199,257 

16,653,040 

4,191,145 

781,825 

14,288,240 

244,956,379 

5,500,736 

78,462,097 

15,850,995 

1,925,149 

2,473,210 

9,200,070 

113,4]2,257 

$1311544,122 

$1,781,441 

2,135,499 

4,507,452 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabi lities at June 30, 2009, are summarized as follows: 

Beginning Ending Current Long-term 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion 

Consolidated Educational 
Building Revenue Bonds S 5,530,000 s s 920,000 s 4,610,000 s 950,000 S 3,660,000 

General Receipts Bonds 18,320,000 1,655,000 16,665,000 1,670,000 14,995,000 

Capita l lease obligations 5,67-1,195 609,962 5,064J,13 639,128 4,'125,105 

Total bonds, notes 
and capital lease 
obligations 29,52~.195 3,184,962 26,339,233 3,259,128 23,080,105 

federal refundable grants 3,856.503 8206 3,848,297 3~ 8J97 

Total long- term 
Liabilitjes S 33,380,698 L S 3,12l 168 $ 30,187,530 s iis9,12B S....26,928,4112 

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows: 

&'ginning Ending Current ~ 
Balann • Addition.~ Reductions Balance Portion Portion 

Housing and Dining 
System Revenue Bonds $ 16,330,000 $ g 16,330,(X)O $ $ $ 

Consolidatt>d Educational 
Building Revenue Bonds 6,415,000 885,000 5,530,000 920,000 4,610,000 

General Receipts Bonds 18,320,000 18,320,000 1,655,000 16,665,000 

Capital lease obligations 6,256,562 582,367 5,674,195 609,960 5,.064,235 

Notes payable 130,000 130000 

Total bonds, notes 
and capital lease 
obligations 29,131,562 18,320,000 17,927,367 29,524,195 3,184,960 26,339,235 

Federal refundable grants 4 046 260 189757 3,856.503 3,~.503 

To tal long- term 
Liabilities $.J3J 77,822 UB 320 CXXJ $_ 18,11ZJ2!1 $a3J,380,698 $_3,18:1..9.uO $__3,0J95,238 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financ ia l Sta tements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

The following is a summary of bonds, capita l lease obl igations and notes payable at June 30: 

2.00 - 4.50% Consolidated Educational Building Revenue Bonds, Series Land 

M repayable in semi-annual installments w ith the final installment due 
May, 2024 

4.00% General Receipts Bonds, 2007 Series A, repayable in semi-annual 

ins ta llments with the final installment due Novembe r, 2027 

3.00 - 3.80% General Receipts Bonds, 2008 Series A, payable in semi-annual 

insta llments w ith the fina l installment due November, 2022 

4.00 - 4.50% Genera l Receipts Bonds, 2008 Taxable Series B, repayable in 

semi-annual installments with the fina l installment due May, 2013 

5.00% Capital lease obligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 

installments with the final installment due February, 20·19 

5.75% Capital lease obligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 
ins ta llments with the final ins tallment due May, 2013 

9.40% Capital lease obligation w ith the Foundation, repayable in monthly 

ins ta llments with the final ins ta ll ment due March, 2023 

4.19% Capital lease obligation with a finance corpora tion in semi-annual 

payments with final ins tallment due October, 2019 

3.58% C1pital lease obligation wi th a finance corpora tion in semi-annual 

payments w ith final installment due June, 2015 

4.47% Capital lease o bligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 

ins ta llments with the final ins tallment due August, 2015 
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2009 

$ 4,610,000 

6,100,000 

9,350,000 

1,215,000 

144,857 

427,550 

396,031 

1,390,239 

2,487,330 

218,226 

$ 2.6.339.233 

2008 

$ 5,530,000 

6,445,000 

10,000,000 

1,875,000 

156,232 

513,422 

409,706 

1,493,743 

2,852,799 

248.293 

$.29.524.195 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

Tn order to reti re the revenue bonds, the University is required to make deposits to sinking funds in 
annual amounts sufficient to meet the principal and interest payments due within the next tvvelve 
months. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, all reserve requirements have been fully funded. The 
revenue bonds a re subject to severa l non-financial covenants, all of which management has asserted 
were met as of June 30, 2009 and 2008. 

The Consolidated Educational Bui lding Revenue Bonds are col lateralized by various buildings. The 
revenues derived from student registration fees are pledged as collateral on the Consol idated 
Educationa l Building Revenue Bond issues. 

The capital leases consist of leases of real estate and equipment. The leased equi pment includes 
items related to an energy savings project and a new computer system. 

The following equipment is held under capi tal lease obligations at June 30: 

Equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

2009 

$ 7,722,742 

(3,624,191) 

$_A, 02.8,5.51 

2008 

$ 7,722,742 

(2,741,997) 

$ 4.2ao.z4s 

The following is a schedu le by years of fu ture minimum payments required for the capital lease 
obligations as of June 30, 2009: 

Year ending June 30, 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less: amounts representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 
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$ 870,653 

870,653 

845,065 

863,403 

740,869 

1,957,376 

6,148,019 

(1,083,786) 

S 5064.233 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Sta tements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

The principal and interest repay ment requirements relating to the outs tanding bonds at June 30, 

2009, are as follows: 

Princi12al Interest Total 

Year ending June 30, 

2010 s 2,620,000 $ 760,992 $ 3,380,992 

2011 2,385,000 666,283 3,051,283 

2012 2,170,000 581,044 2,751,044 

2013 1,755,000 501,572 2,256,572 

2014 1,530,000 442,041 1,972,041 

2015-2028 10,815,000 2,284.489 13,099,489 

5 21 225,illlQ $_5 ,23.6A2.l $Aill.421 

Advance Refunding 

On June 10, 2008, the University issu ed its General Receipts Bonds, 2008 Tax-Exempt Series A, in the 
amount of $10,000,000 and General Receipts C3onds, 2008 Taxable Series B, in the amount of 
$1,875,000. TI1e bonds have average interest rates of 3.576% and 4.12% respectively. The bonds 
cons ist of seria l bonds bearing various fixed rates ranging from 3.0% to 4.0% with annua l maturities 
from November 2008 through November 2022. 

The ne t proceeds of $11,738,655 (c1fter issuance costs o f $63,035, less ne t discount of $73,310), plus the 
balance in the d ebt ser vice reserve account and repair and ma intenance reserve account totaling 
$3,724,910 were used to advance refund the Univers ity's Hous ing and Dining System Revenue 
Bonds Series N, 0, P, Q and R which had total outstanding principal in the amo unt of $14,770,000 
c1nd interest ra tes ranging fro m 2.75% to 5.75%. 

The net proceeds were u sed to purchase state and loca l government securities. TI1ose securities 
were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service 
payments o n the refunded bonds. As a result, the refundab le bonds are considered to be defeased 
and the related liabi lity for the bonds has been removed from the University's financial statements . 

The advance refunding was done in o rder to eliminate the requirement for maintaining debt service 
and repair and maintenance reserve accounts and to reduce cash flow needed for future d ebt service 
pay ments. The refunding decreased the University's tota l debt service cash flow payments by 
approximately $4.4 million over the approximate 15 year life of the General Receipts Bonds 2008 
Series A and B. The transac tion resulted in an econo mic gain (difference between the present value 
of the debt service on the o ld and the new bonds) o f approximately $67,000. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Sta te ments, continued 

7. Pension Plan 

Kentucky Teachers Retirement System 

All faculty and exempt employees requi red to hold a degree and occupying full-time positions, 
defined as seven-tenths (7/10) of no rmal full-time service on a daily or weekly basis, are required by 
state law to partic ipate in the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS). KTRS, a cost sharing, 
multiple-employer, public employee retirement sys tem, provides retirement benefits based on an 
employee's final average salary and number of years service. Benefits are subject to certain 

reductions if the employee re tires before reaching age s ixty, unless the employee has twenty-seven 
or more years of participation in the plan. The plan a lso provides for disability retirement, d eath 
and survivor benefits and medical insurance. 

The Kentucky Teachers Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial s tatements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
w riting to Kentucky Teachers Retirement System, 479 Versailles Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-

3868 or by calling (502) 573-5120. 

Funding for the plan is provided from e lig ible employees who contribute 6.1 6% of their salary 
through payroll deductions and the Common wea lth of Kentucky, which also indirectly contributes 
13.84% of currently eligible employees' sa laries to the KTRS through appropriations to the 
University . Contribution requirements of the plan members and the University are established by 
Kentucky Revised Statute and the KTRS Board of Trustees. The Univers ity's contributions to KTRS 
for the years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $4,392,051 and $4,298,335, respective ly, equal to 
the required contributions fo r each year. 

Kentuckv Emplovee Retirement System 

Substantially a ll other full-ti me University employees a re required by law to part1c1pate in the 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), a cost sharing mu ltiple-employer, public 
employee ret irement system. KERS provides retirement benefit s based on an employee's final 
average salary and numbe r of years of service. Benefits are subject to certain reductions if the 
employee re tires before reaching age sixty-five, or has less than twenty-seven yea rs of service. The 
plan a lso provides for disability re tirement, death and survivor benefits and medical insurance. 

The Kentucky Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report tha t 
includes financial s tatements and required supplementary information. That repo rt may be 
obtained by writing to Kentucky Employees Retirement System, ·t 260 Louisville Road, Perimeter 
Park West, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 or by calling (502) 564-4646. 

Funding for the p lan is provided from elig ible hazardous and non-hazardous employees who 
contribute 8.00% and 5.00%, respectively of their salary through payroll deductions and the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky, which also indirectly contributes 24.35% and 10.01 %, respectively of 
current e ligible hazardous and non-hazardous employees' salaries to the KERS through 
appropriations to the Univers ity. Unive rs ity contribution rates are determined by the Kentucky 
Revised Statue and the Board of Trus tees of the Kentu cky Retirement Systems each biennium. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

7. Pension Plan, continued 

Kentucky Employee Retirement Syste m, continued 

The University's contributio ns to KER$ for the years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $1,251,239 
and $968,634 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Optional Retirement Plans 

Optional retirement plans (ORP's) a re available to employees hired on o r after January ·1, 1997, who 
would otherwise be participants in the Kentucky Tenchers' Retirement System. The ORP is 
established as a 403(b) defined contribution plan under, the Internal Revenue Code guidelines. The 
providers of the University's ORP's are the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College 
Retirement Equities Fund, Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company and International 
Netherlands Group. Under these p lans the employee's contribution is 6.16% of their gross salary 
and the University's contribution is 4.41 % to the retirement company and 9.43% to Kentucky 
Teachers Retirement System. Senate Bill 65 was passed to set the ORP-KTRS rate to 5:10% for all 
payments effective Apri l 1, 2008. The University's contribution to the retirement annuity company 
was adjusted to 8.74%. The University's contributions under these plans to Kentucky Teachers 
Retirement System fo r the years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $839,837 and $808,615 
respectively, equal to the required contributions fo r each yea r. 

8. Operating leases 

The University has operating lease agreements for use of equipment and various parcels of real 
estate cancclable annually with the option to renew. The University recognizes the expenditures 
related to those obligations as lease payments are made. Total rent expenses under operating type 
leases were approximately $699,000 and $523,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

9. Contingencies and Com mi tments 

1l1e University is a defend ant in lawsuits; however, University management is o f the opinion, based 
on advice of legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of these litigation matters will not have a 
material effect on the future o peratio ns or financial position of the University. 

The University receives financial assistance from federa l and state agencies in the form of g rants and 
awards. The expenditure o f funds received under these programs generally requires compliance 
w ith terms and conditions specified in the g rant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor 
agencies. Any disa llowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the 
applicable fund. The University had no disallowed claims in the past. In the opinion of 
management, such potentia l disallowed claims, if any, wou ld not have a material adverse effect on 
the overall financial position o f the University at June 30, 2009. 

The University has made certain commitments related to the comple tio n of various construction 
projects in p rogress totaling approxi mately $43,700,000. Such constTUction is principally financed 
by appropriations from the Commonwealth of Kentucky and proceeds fro m bonds. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

10. Self-Insurance Program 

The University maintains a self-insurance program for employees· dental insurance. The University 
funds the plan at the single rate for all permanent full-time employees with the employees paying 
the difference between the single plan and the family plan, if applicable. Expenses incurred to cover 
claims paid by the University under the plan for fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 totaled 
$360,583 and $306,164, respectively. 

The University maintains a fully insured health plan. The University pays a sliding percentage of 
premiums for all permanent full-time employees. Depending on the level of coverage, this amount 
ranges from a low of $323 per month to a high of $718. Payments for employee health insurance for 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $6,188,1 46 and $5,398,030 respectively. 

11. Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, destruction of 
assets; business interruption; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health 
and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims aris ing from theft of, 
damage to, destruction of assets; business interruption; natural disasters; and employee health and 
accident benefits. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three 
preceding years. As a sovereign entity of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the Kentucky Board of 
Claims handles tort claims on behalf of the University. 

The Commonwealth of Kentucky opera tes a public entity risk pool operating as a common risk 
management and insurance prog ram for its members. The pool's governing agreement specifies 
that the pool will be self-sustaining throug h member premiums and will reinsure through 
commercial carriers for claims in excess o f specified s top loss amounts. 

The University operates a self-insurance program for worker's compensation for its employees. The 
University purchases reinsurance throug h commercial carriers for claims in excess of specified stop 
loss amounts. 

12. Friends of Kentucky Folk Art Center, Jnc. 

The Friends of Kentucky fo lk Art Center, Inc. (KFAC) provides educational opportunities, benefits 
and programs to the public to enhance the awareness of and foster an appreciation and 
understanding of contemporary folk art. Under an operating agreement, the University provides 
office space and certain administrative services to the Kf-AC at no charge. As a resu lt of the 1998 
General Assembly's legislative decision to appropriate $200,000 annually to KFAC as an affiliate of 
the University, the KFAC became an affiliated corporation in accordance with the provisions of KRS 
164A.610. The financial s tatements of this affilic1ted corporation are reported upon separately. 
However, the assets, liabilities and net assets of KFAC have been included in the University's 
financial statements. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Sta tements, continued 

13. Endowment Trust Funds 

The Foundation holds endowment investments for the University, the majority of which arc 
associated with the Regional Universi ty Excellence Trus t Fund (RUETT). The RUETF was created by 

the Kentucky General Assembly w ith the passage of the Postsecondary Education Impro vement Act 
of 1997 n -louse Bill I"). The RUETF Endowment Match Program, also known as "Bucks for Brains", 
provides s tate funds on a d ollar-for-dollar basis . . Funds are endowed for the purposes of supporting 
endowed chairs and professorships. 

TI, e fair market value of Morehead State Un ivers ity endowment fu nds held by the Fou ndation as of 
June 30, 2009 and 2008 was $17,314,957 and $21 ,842,642, respectively . The po rtion o f the 

endowments represen ting the value of the funding received fro m the Kentucky General Assembly 
was $11,329,592 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, and is included in investm ents held by 
the Found ation. 

14. Related Parties 

The University and the Foundation a re rela ted parties. The Foundation's purpose is to assis t in the 
development, grow th, expansion and progress of the s tudent p rograms of Morehead Sta te 
U nivers ity. The Uni vers ity authorizes the Foundation to solicit contributions on its behalf. In the 
absence o f donor restrictions, the Fou nda tion has d iscretionary control over the amounts and timing 
o f its dis tTibutions to the Univers ity. 

Related party transactions and funds held by the Fo undation on behalf of the Univers ity are as 
fo llows d u ring 2009 and 2008: 

funds d isbursed by the University on behalf of the Foundation for 
employee salaries and benefits 

f-unds held by the Founda tion on beha lf or for the 
benefit o f the Univers ity 

Funds d ue to the University by the f oundation 

2009 2008 

$94,667 

11,329,592 

8,446 

$64,386 

11,329,592 

107,600 

The Uni versity entered into an agreement with the Foundation w here the Univers ity w ill provide 
personnel, office space, support equ ip ment and other services that may be necessary to the operation 
of the Foundation. The foundation reimburses the Uni versity for these services at a rate determined 
mut·ually by the two entities. This amount increased to $79,908 per year on March 1, 2008. Amounts 
disclosed above as funds disbursed by the Univers ity on behalf of the Foundation for employee 
sa laries and benefits are net of the 579,908 per year for U,c fisca l year ended June 30, 2009 and net of a 
p rorated amount based on the increase of $46,636 for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008. 

The Uni versity has also entered into several d irect financing cap ital leases o f real estate with the 
Foundatio n as d isclosed in Note 16!. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Subsequent Events 

On July 15, 2009, the Uni versity sold General Receipts Bonds for $28,930,000. TI1ese bonds w ill be 
amortized over twenty yea rs, and w ill be used to cons truct a s tudent recreation center and fund the 
renovation of a residence ha ll. 

16. Morehead State Unjversity Foundation, Inc 

A. Description of Organization 

The Morehead State Univers ity Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a corpo ration form ed fo r 
educatio nal, charitable and public purposes in accordance w ith the provis ions of KRS 273.0010. TI1e 
Foundation is a component un it o f Morehead State Uni vers ity (the Univers ity). Specifically, it was 
fou nded to cooperate w ith Lhe Univers ity and its Board of Regents in the p romotion of the 
educational, civic and charitable purposes o f the University in any lawful manne r deemed 
appropria te by the Foundation's Board of T rus tees. This pu rpose includes the encouragement of 
scholarship and research and the promotion of the prestige, expansion and development of the 
University's physical plant and facu lty and the assistance of its students and a lumni. 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The preparation o f financial s tatements p repared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requ ires management to m ake es timates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount o f assets and liabilities and d isclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the dates of the fi nancia l s tatements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
du ring the reporting periods. Actua l results could differ from these estimates. 

The following is a summary of the signi ficant accounting po licies consis tently fo llo wed by the 

Foundation in the preparation of its financia l s tatements. 

Basis of Presentation 

The Foundation's financial s tatements are presented in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS} No. 117, Fi11m1cial State111e11ts of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under these standards net 
assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based upon the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Accord ingly, net assets of the foundation and changes therein are classified 
and reported as follows: 

U11restricted 11et assets: Net assets that are not subject to d onor-imposed stipulations. Unrestricted 
net assets may be design ated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trus tees. 

Te111porari/11 restricted net assets: Net assets whose use by the Founda tion is subject to d ono r­
imposed stipulations that can be fulfi lled by actions of the Foundation pursuant to those 
s tipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial S tatements, continued 

16. Morehead S tate University Foundation, Inc, continued 

B. Summary of Sig nificant Accounting Policies, continued 

Bas is of Presentation, continued 

Penna11entlu restricted net assets: Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that ne ither 

expire by the passage o f time nor can be fulfilled or o therwise removed. Generally, donors of 

1hese assets pe rm it the Foundation to use all or part of the income earned on rela ted investments 
for general or specific purposes. 

Pledges receivable of amounts greate r than $500, less an appropria te a llowance amount, are recorded at 
the net present value of estima ted future cash flows us ing a d iscount rate commens urate w ith the risks 

involved. Net present value was computed us ing a d iscount rate o f 2.54% and 3.34% for the years 

ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

The a llowance for doubtful accounts is established through a provision for doubtful accounts charged 

to expense. 1he a llowance represents an amount, which, in management's judgment, will be adequate 

to absorb probable losses on existing pledges that may become uncollectible. 

Investments 

Investments in equ ity securities having a readily determinable fair value and all debt securities a re 
carried at fa ir value. Investment returns include d ividend, interest and o the r investment income and 

rea lized and unrea li:.wd gains a nd losses on investments carried at fa ir value. Inveshn ent re turns that 

a re initially restricted by d onor s tipula tion and fo r w hich the res trictio n will be satis fi ed in the same 
yea r are included as unrestricted ne t assets . O the r investment returns a re reflected in the s tatement 

of activ ities as unres tricted, temporari ly res tricted o r permanently restricted based upon the existence 

and nature of any d onor or legally imposed restrictions. 

Property and Equ ipment 

Property and equipment is sta ted a t cost a t the d ate of acquisiti on o r fair value at date of donatio n. 
Expenditures w ith a cost g reater than $1,000, which increase values or extend useful lives of the 

resp ective assets, are capitali zed, w hereas expenditures fo r maintenance and repairs are charged to 
expense as incurred . Deprecia tion of assets is computed using the straight-line method over the 

estima ted useful lives of the respective assets . 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc, continued 

B. Summary of Significan t Accoun ting Policies, continued 

Funds Held in Trus t for Morehead State U nivers ity 

The Foundation is the custodian of funds owned by the Univers ity for the purpose of es tablishing 
certain endowment funds as a uthorized by the Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education and 

the Kentucky Genera l Assembly. The Foundatio n inves ts the principal with a portion of the income 
d erived from the principal to be remitted annually to the Univers ity. For the years ended June 30, 
2009 and 2008, the Foundation held $11,329,592, respectively, for the University's investment 
purposes. 

Annuities Pavable 

The Foundation pays stipulated amounts periodically to individuals (annuitants) who have g iven to 
the foundation certain assets and who have ente red into agreements that such payments cease a t the 
death of the annuitant. Total annuity payments for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were 
$102,623 and $81,750, respectively. 

The June 30, 2009 and 2008 annuity liabilities balances of $557,597 and $476,173 are the present values 
of the monthly, quarter ly, or semiannual payments to the annuitants based on the life expectancies of 
the annuitants and interest rates rang ing from 6% to 10%. The estimated remaining life expectancies 
of the annuitants range from 5.4 to 8.7 years and 5.7 to 7.1 years for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 
2008, respectively. 

Due to Morehead State Univers ity 

A gift was pledged to the Foundation that the donor s tipulated was specifically for the University. In 
accordance with Sta tement o f Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 136, Transfers of Assets to a 
Not-for-Profit Orgn11izntion or Charitable Tni st Tlrnt Raises or Holds Co11tributio11s for Others, the gift has 
been included as a liability on the Foundation's State ment of Financial Position. 

Contributions 

Gifts of cash and other assets received witho ut d onor s tipulations are repo rted as unrestricted 
revenue and net assets . Gifts received with a do nor s tipulation that limits their use are reported as 
temporarily or permanently restric ted revenue and net assets . When a d onor-stipulated time 
restr iction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestric ted net assets and repo rted in the statement of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions. Gifts and investment income that are orig inally restricted by the donor and for 
which the restriction is met in the same time period are included in unrestricted net assets. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc, continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

ContTibutions. continued 

Gifts of land, buildings, equipment, and other long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted revenue 
and net assets unless expl icit donor stipulations specify how such assets must be used, in whid1 case 
the gifts are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted revenue and net assets. Absent 
explicit donor s tipulations for the time long-lived assets must be held, expirations of restrictions 

resulting in the reclassification of temporarily res tricted net assets to unrestricted net assets are 
reported when the long-lived assets are p laced in service. 

Unconditional gifts expected to be collected w ithin one year are repo rted at their net realizable value. 
Unconditional g ifts expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of 
estimated h.1tme cash flows. The resu lting discount is computed using risk-free interest applicable to 
the years in which the promises are received. Amortization us ing the level-yield method is included 
in contribution revenue. Condit ional gifts are not included as support until the conditions are 
substantially met. 

Donated Materials and Property 

Donated materials and property are recorded at the ir estimated fair value when received. The 
Statement of Activities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 includes in-kind contributions of 
$493,193 and $352,736, respectively. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of supporting the various programs and o ther activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the Statements of Activities. Certain costs have been allocated among the 
functional categories based on their relationship to various direct costs in those functions. 

Tax Exempt Status 

The Foundation is exempt from fed eral income taxes under Section S0I(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. Except for tax on any unrelated business income activities, no provision for income taxes has 
been made. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc, continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 168, The FASB Accou11ti11g Standards Codification a11d the Hierarchy of 
Ge11ernlly Acci:pted Accounti11g Principles (FAS 168) effective for financial s tatements issued for interim 
and fiscal years ending after September 15, 2009. FAS 168 identifies the sources of accounting 
principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial 
statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States (the GAAP hierarchy). FAS 168 will not impact 
U1e financial position, operating results o r cash flows of the Foundation, but will impact the way 
accounting s tandards are issued in the future and referenced in the financial statements. 

Reclnssification 

During 2009 it was discovered that within the unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently 
res tricted classifications, certain net assets had been misclassified as of June 30, 2008 and previous 
years. Net assets were reclassified primarily for investments, net investment in capital leases and 
property. TI1is change is reflected in Ule 2009 statements of financial pos ition and activities. There 
was no effect on tot.-il assets, total liabilities .-ind net assets, or changes in net assets. 

C. Investments 

Investments held as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows: 

Certificates of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds and stocks 
Annuity investment 

Total investments at fair valu e 

$ 

2009 

1,464,243 

21,519,375 

41,804 
125,153 

23.1so,m 

2008 

$ 1,113,385 
26,549,007 

45,886 
120 979 

s 22.82&25.2 

Investment management fees were approximately S52,000 and $69,000 during the years ended June 
30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State Univers ity Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements 

TI1e Foundation has determined the fa ir value oi certa in assets and liabilities through application of 
Sf. AS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. 

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices in Significant 

Active Markets O ther Significant 

for Identical Observable Unobservable 

Assets/Liabilities Inputs Inpu ts 

f.a ir Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

June 30, 2009 

Certificates of depos it $ 1,464,243 $ 1,464,243 s $ 

Mutual Funds 21,519,375 21,519,375 

Corporate bonds and stocks 41,804 41,804 

Annuity investment 125,153 125,153 

Total Assets $23,150,575 $ 23,150,575 $ $ 

Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 1 inputs a re based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices within active m arkets . Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 2 inputs are based 
primarily on quoted prices for similar assets or liabiliti es in active or inactive ma rke ts. Financial 
assets and liabi lities us ing Level 3 inputs were primarily valued using management's assumptions 
about the assumptions market participants ,vould utilize in pricing the asset or liability. A ll assets 
have been va lued using a market approach. 

Donor-Designated Endowments 

TI1e foundation follows the Uniform Manage ment of Institutional Funds Act o f 1972 (UMJFA) and its 

own governing documents. UMlFA requires the his torica l dollar amount of a donor-res tricted 

endowment fund to be preserved. In the absence of donor restrictions, the net appreciation on a 

donor-restricted endowment fund is spendable under UMIFA. The Foundation's donors have not 

placed restric tions on the use of the investment income or net appreciation resulting from the donor­
restricted endowment funds 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State University foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continued 

Donor-Designated Endowments, continued 

The Foundation, on the advice of legal counsel, has determined lhat the majority of contributions are 
subject to the terms of its governing documents. Certain contributions are received subject to other 
gift instru ments, or are subject to specific agreements with the Foundation. Under the terms of the 
Foundation governing documents, the Foundation has the ability to distribute so much of the 
original principal of any trus t o r separate gift, devise, bequest, o r fund as the Foundation in its sole 
discretion shall d etermine. As a result of the ability to distribute the original principal, all 
contributions not classified as temporarily restricted or pe rmanently restricted are classified as 
unrestricted net assets for financia l statement purposes. 

The Foundation has established a financial management and investment policy fo r endowment 
assets that provides genera l g uidelines for the prudent investment management of the endo wment 
fund assets. The investment policy is established with the objective to preserve the real purchasing 
power of endowment assets as well as generate capita l appreciation, after accounting for 
endowment spending, inflation, and costs of the po rtfo lio and fund management, both inte rnal and 
external. 

The current financial management and investment po licy establishes an annual maximum approved 
spending goal for distributions of up to 3.5% of endowment assets, a management fee used to 
support the annual operating budget which will not exceed 1 %, the costs of managing the portfolio 
shall not be greater than 1 % of the portfolio va Jue, and therefore the long-te rm target minimum 
annual return shall be 5.5%. In order to achieve a prudent level of portfolio diversification, the 
securities of any one company should not exceed more than 5% of total, and no more than 25% of 
total should be invested in any one sector. Investments in rea l property sha ll be limited to 10% of 
total assets owned by the f-oundation unless o therw ise determined by the Foundation's f-inance and 
Investment Committee. 

Endowment ne t asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

Total Net 

Temporarily Permanently Endowment 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets 

Donor-restricted 

endowment funds $ $ (672,707) $ 13,147,752 s12,1175,045 

Total Assets s $ (672,707) $ 13,147,752 $12,475,045 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Moreh ead State University Fou ndation, Inc., cont inued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continue d 

Donor-Designated Endowments. continued 

Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2009 are as fo llows: 

Tempo rarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 

Endowment net assets 

beginning of year s $ 4,840,365 $13,265,024 

Contribu lions 154,802 441,299 

Interest and dividend income 1,127,250 

Net depreciation (6,199,595) 

Amounts appropriated 

for expenditure (202,438) 

Net assets adjustment (393,091) (558,571) 

Endowment net assets 

end of year $ $ (672,707) $13,147,752 

E. Pl ed ges Receivable 

Pledges receivable have been designated to be paid by donors as follows: 

Year ended June 30 
2010 
201] 
201 2 
2013 
2014 
Thereafter 

Less: present value discount 
Less: allowance for uncollectible pledges 

Pledges receivable, net 

Less: current p ledges receivable 
Noncurrent pledges receivable 

52 

$ 

s 

383,627 
151,443 
128,163 
29,848 
22,500 
72 351 

787,932 

(69,795) 
(78,793) 

639,344 

(313,832) 
325,5_12 

Total Net 

Endowment 

Assets 

$18,105,389 

596,101 

1,127,250 

(6,199,595) 

(202,438) 

(951,662) 

$12,475,045 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial State ments, continued 

16. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

F. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following: 

2009 2008 

Land $ 170,000 $ 53,000 
r:umiture and equipment 154,579 134,819 
Buildings 175 000 175 000 

499,579 362,819 
Less: accumulated depreciation (141,884) (1 18,843) 

$ 357.695. $ 243.976 

G. Deferred Giving Prog ram 

The foundation established a life insurance deferred giving program during 1983. The program 
consists of donors designating the Foundation as the owner and beneficia ry of life insurance po licies. 
There are twenty deferred giving progra ms with life insurance in effect totaling $685,000 and 
$660,000 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The cash surrender value of these 
policies as o f June 30, 2009 and 2008 is $93,723 and $94,047, respectively. 

H. Support for Morehead State University 

The foundation's purpose is to assis t in the development, growth, expansion and progress of the 
student programs of Morehead State Uni versity. All support to the Uni versity has been disclosed 
separately on the Statement of Activities as "University support". 

1. Net Investment in Capital leases 

The Foundation's net investment in d irect financing capital leases of real estate with the University as 
o f June 30, 2009 a nd 2008 is as follows: 

Total minimum lease payments to be received 
Less: unearned income 

Net investment in capital leases 

53 

$ 

$ 

2009 

1,654,783 
(468,118) 

1.186.665 

2008 

$ 1,896,062 
(568,409) 

$ li32Z,653 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

No tes to the Financial Sta tements, continued 

16. Morehead State Universi ty Foundation, Inc., continued 

L Net lnvestment in Capital Leases, continued 

TI1e following is a schedule o f future minimum lease payments due from direct financing capital 
leases as of June 30: 

2010 $ 241,279 
2011 241,279 
2012 241,279 
2013 234,030 

2014 111,496 

Thereafter 585 420 

$ ](_6~283 

J. Temporarily and Permanen tly Restricted Net Assets 

Tempo rarily restricted net assets are available a t June 30, 2009 and 2008 for the following purposes: 

Funds restric ted for specific purposes 
Sd1olarships 
Athletics 

2009 

$ 621,210 

$_6_21,llil 

Permanently res tricted net assets a t June 30, 2009 and 2008 cons is t of endowment funds. 

Temporarily restricted net assets consis t of the following as o f June 30: 

Pled ges receivable 
Investments 
Property 
Net investment in capital leases 

54 

2009 

$ 381,549 
(672,707) 
153,252 
759,116 

S 621,llQ 

$ 

$ 

2008 

2,172,692 
1,712,454 
1 488107 

5.373.253 

2008 

532,888 
4,840,365 

5.373.253. 



MOREHEAD STATE UN IV ERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

16. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

J. Temp orarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets, continued 

Permanently restricted ne t assets consist of the following as o f June 30: 

Pledges receivable 
investments 
Property 
Net investment in capital leases 

K. Related-Party Transactions 

2009 

$ 173,513 
12,493,690 

53,000 
427,549 

U3,147.752 

$ 

$ 

2008 

254,626 
11,659,300 

206,252 
1 144 846 

13,,265.024 

The Univers ity entered into an agreement w ith the Foundation where the University will provide 
personnel, office space, support equipment and other services that may be necessary to the operation 
of the Foundation. The Foundation reimburses the Univers ity for these services a t a rate determined 
mutually by the two entities of $79,908 per year. SFAS No. 116, Acco1111ti11g for Co11trib11tio11s Received 
and Contributions Made, requires recognitio n of professional services received if those services (a) 

create long-lived assets or (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those 
skills, and wou ld typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. Those services in excess 
of $79,908 per year a re consid ered in-kind contributed services and are treated as both revenue and 
expense to the Foundation. The reimbursement amount was increased to $79,908 effective March 1, 

2008, from the previous amount of $78,000. 

Transactions wi th the University include direct financing capita l leases and support for the 
Univers ity as disclosed in Notes H and I. 

L Concentration of Credit Risk 

Th e Foundation has a concentration of cred it risk in that it maintains cash d eposits in financial 
institutions which, a t times, exceed federa lly insured limits. Effective May 20, 2009, FDIC insurance 
temporarily increased from $100,000 to $250,000 for each individual account through December 31, 
2013. Cash deposits in excess of the federally insured limits total $623,880 and $1,093,354 as of June 

30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, concluded 

16. Morehead State University foundation, Inc., continued 

M. Funds Held for Agencies 

The f oundation is acting as an agent for another o rganization related to the University. Included in 
cash and other current liabilities is $21,500 o f agency funds. 

N. Subsequent Events 

The foundation evaluates events a nd transactions that occur afte r the balance sheet as potential 
subsequent events. The Foundation performed this evaluation as of September 29, 2009. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule o ( Bonds, Notes and Capital Lease O bligations 

June 30, 2009 

Interest Debt Service 

Issue Net Amount Interest O uts tanding Payments Outstanding Paid Requirements 2009-10 

D<1te of Issue Cost lune 30, 2008 2008-09 New Issues lune 30, 2009 2008-09 Principal Inte rest 

Consolidated Educational 

Building Revenue Bonds: 

Series L 12/01 /01 54,875,000 2.25-4.30 $1,770,000 $ 410,000 $ $ 1,360,000 s; 74,838 $430,000 $ 57,823 

Series M 01/01/04 5,620,000 2.00-4.50 3,760,000 510,000 3,250,000 126,248 520,000 112,222 

Total educational bu ildings 10,495,000 5,530,000 920,000 4,610,000 201,086 950,000 170,045 

General Receipts: 

2007 Series A Bonds 08/14/07 6,445,000 4.00 6,445,000 345,000 6,100,000 250,900 360,000 236,800 

2008 Series A Bonds 06/10/08 10,000,000 3.00-3.80 ]0,000,000 650,000 9,350,000 287,797 635,000 304,672 

2008 Series B Bonds 06/10/08 1,875,000 4.00-4.50 1,875,000 660,000 1,215,000 67,655 675,000 49,475 

Total General Receipts 18,320,000 18,320,000 1,655,000 16,665,000 606,352 1,670,000 590,947 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Bonds, Notes and Capita l Lease Obligations, concluded 

June 30, 2009 

Interest Debt Service 

Issue Net Amount Interest Outstanding Payments Outstanding Paid Requirements 2009-10 

Date o( Issue Cost lune 30, 2008 2008-09 New Issues (unc 30, 2009 2008-09 Princi12al Jnter_qst 

Lease Purchase Agreements: 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 03/01/99 240,000 5.0 156,232 11,375 144,857 7,553 11,956 6,971 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 07/15/02 990,000 5.75 513,422 85,872 427,550 43,911 94,161 35,623 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 10/21/02 466,457 9.4 409,706 13,675 396,031 38,338 15,017 36,996 

C iti Mortgage, Inc. 03/31/05 1,824,000 4.19 1,493,743 103,504 1,390,239 6·1,515 107,886 57,133 

Suntrust Bank, Inc 06/15/05 3,874,522 3.58 2,852,799 365,469 2,487,330 98,887 378,669 85,686 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 09/01/05 327,764 4.47 248,293 30,067 218,226 10,488 31,439 9 116 

Total lease purchase 7,722,743 5,674,195 609,962 5,064,233 260,692 639,128 ___lJJ..._525 

Total :Ji 36,53Zl13 s..2.i-521,m U 181!262 $ $ 26,332,233 $1,068.130 $3,252,128 $ 222!5lZ 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures o f Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal C ran tor/Pass Through 

Cran tor/Program or Cluste r Title 

U.S Department of Education: 

Direct Programs: 

Student Financial Aid Cluster: 

National Science and Mathematics Access 

to Retain Talent Grant Program 

Academic Competitiveness Grant Program 

Federal Work Study 

Federal Pell Grant Program 

Federal Supplementa l Educa tiona l 

Opportunity Grant Program 

Federa l Perkins Loan Program 

Federal Direct Loan Program 

Teacher Education Assistance for College 

and Higher Education Grants Program 

TRIO Cluster: 

CEOC - NE 07-10 

CEOC - SE 07-10 

Stud ent Support Services 06-07 

Talent Search 07-11 

Talent Search II 07-11 

Upward Bound Central 05-10 

Upward Bound Math/Science 08-12 

Upward Bound Math/Science 04-09 

Upward Bound Central 09/10 

Upward Bo und East 07-11 

Gear-up !RAPP 08-14 

l la il-IFIR 05-07 

Patrick-SI 05-06 

59 

Pass Through 

Number 

CFDA 

Number 

84.375 

84.376 

84.033 

84.063 

84.007 

84.038 

84.268 

84.379 

84.066 

84.066 

84.042 

84.044 

84.044 

84.047 

84.047 

84.047 

84.047 

84 .047 

84.334 

84.116 

84 .031 

Federal 

Expenditures 

$108,351 

127,900 

768,367 

11,001,352 

354,722 

694,584 

34,124,441 

52 906 

47,232,623 

453,395 

226,963 

292,852 

418,295 

233,617 

488,509 

171,792 

99,665 

142,700 

261 499 

2,789,287 

1,215,482 

8,945 

196 300 

1,420,727 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Gran tor/Pass Through 

C rantor/Program or Cluster Title 

Pass Through 

Number 

Passed through Kentucky Education and Workforce 

Development Cabinet - Department for Workforce 

Investment: 

Harr-Fiscal Agent 08/09 PO2 415 0800015087 1 

Tech Prep-Fwd 07-08 PO2 531 07000105431 

Title 1c - NAHS 07-08 PO2 531 07000078641 

Demoss-Kde-Profcss DEV 08/09 PO2 531 08000180761 

Demoss-Kde Summer Conf 08 PO2 531 0800016467 

Mattingly-Cdp Rehab 08/10 PO2 531 0800016952 l 

Willis-First Coach-KDE 08/09 PO2 540 0800016666 1 

Wogoman-Title IC-AAS 08/09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-Title IC-NAHS 08/09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-Title IC-IET 08/09 PO2 531 08000165651 

Wogomnn-Title IC-RS 08/09 PO2 531 08000165651 

Wogoman-Title IC-IS 08/09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-AHS-CF 09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-RS-CF 09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-IET-Cr 09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogman-NAHS-CF 09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-1S-CF 09 PO2 531 0800016565 1 

Wogoman-Title IC-DEAN 08/09 PO2 531 0800016565 2 

Wogoman-Math CTE-KDE 08/09 PO2 531 0800017567 1 

Wogoman-Fiscal Agent-Tech Prep PO2 531 0800016514 1 

Zargari-Teach Prep 08/09 PO2 531 0800018076 1 

Passed through Kentucky Education and Workforce 

Development Cabinet - Department of Education: 

DeMoss MSP CAP 08/09 PO2 540 0800016686 1 

DeMoss-MSP CAP 07-08 PO2 540 0800004428 

Price-KDE-CTL Math/SCI 08/09 

First Coach 07-08 PO2 540 07000076362 

60 

CFDA 

Number 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.346 

84.357 

84.048 

84 .048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.366 

84 .366 

84.366 

84.357 

Federal 

Expenditures 

42,356 

14,724 

3,946 

1,032 

2,847 

745,400 

217,940 

45,987 

43,898 

40,420 

26,440 

15,554 

4,202 

4,202 

4,089 

2,877 

1,225 

288 

171,904 

109,938 

13 508 

1,512,777 

119,699 

71,457 

26,024 

83 483 

300,663 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

f ederal Gran tor/Pass TI1rough 

Cran tor/Program or Cluster Title 

Pass Through 

Number 

Passed through Kentucky Council on Postsecondary 

Education: 

Cunn-CPE 07-08 

Cunn-CPE Phase 2 08-09 

Cunn-CPE-Math & Science 09/10 

KY Gear Up 07/08 

KY Gear Up 07-08 

Canipe-MSU Adu lt LC-CPE 08/09 

Tobin-WL J\dult LC-CPE 08/09 

Passed through National Writi ng Project 

Corporation: 

NWP #13 05-06 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

U.S Depart ment of Health and Human Services: 

Direct Programs: 

Blunt-HHS-Rural Health 08/11 

Magner-Martin County-HRSA 08/10 

Passed through University of Louisville Research 

fou ndation: 

Dennis-KBRIN-INBRE 08/09 

White-KBRIN-INBRE 08/09 

DeMoss-Kl3RIN-INBRE 08/09 

1-lare-KBRIN-INBRE 08/09 

Fultz-KBRIN-INBRE 08/09 

PO2 415 06000047151 

PO2 415 07000128561 

PO2 415 0900022310 1 

M-055083935 

M-055083935 

PO2 415 0800020206 

PO2 415 0800020215 2 

94 -KY07 

61 

04-0388D MSU 

04-0388D MSU 

04-03880 MSU 

04-03880 MSU 

04-0388D MSU 

CFDA 

Number 

84.367 

84.367 

84.367 

84.334 

84.334 

84.002 

84.002 

84.928 

93.912 

93.888 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

Federal 

Expend itures 

24,094 

136,425 

22,133 

158,992 

69,221 

162,670 

185,258 

758,793 

46,291 

54,061,161 

142,978 

85264 

228,242 

101,392 

65,565 

50,465 

33,991 

13176 

264,589 



MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of foedera l Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

foederal Gran tor/Pass Through 

Granter/Program or Cluster Title 

Passed through Eastern Kentucky University: 

Sloan-MSU Training 08/09 

PCWCP Morehead 08/09 

PCWCP Ashland 08/09 

PCWCP Pburg 08/09 

PCWCP Mt. Sterling 08/09 

Passed through University of Kentucky 

Research fooundation: 

Nurse Practitioner 07-08 

Passed through Kentucky Cabinet for I lcalth and 

Family Services: 

Scott-Cl-IFS-Steps 08/09 

Pass Through 

Number 

451702-09-165 

451705-09-168 

451705-09-167 

451705-09-169 

45'1705-09-174 

UKRF 4-63922-01-284 

P02 736 0800017046 I 

Totr1l U.S. Department of Health and Humnn 

Services 

U.S Department of Commerce: 

Direct Programs: 

Hare Height Mod NOAA 07/08 

Hare - NOAA 06/07 

Slonn-Height Mod NOAA 08/09 

Total U.S Department o f Commerce 

National Science Foundation: 

Direct Programs: 

Dennis-NSF-MSP 08/09 

CSMS 03/07 

62 

CFDA 

Number 

93.658 

93.658 

93.648 

93 .658 

93.648 

93.247 

93.558 

11.400 

11.400 

11.400 

47.076 

47.076 

f-ederal 

Expenditures 

66,744 

9,948 

8,966 

7,647 

6 355 

99,660 

30,993 

26,289 

649 773 

309,983 

37,211 

17,211 

364 405 

67,351 

55 365 

122,716 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Sch edule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

federal Gran tor/Pass Through Pass Through 

Crantor/Program or Cluster Title Number 

Passed through Institute for Global Environmental 

Strategics: 

O'Keefe-NSF ESSEA 07-09 9055-001-45 

Passed through University of Albany: 

Ha re-NSF-Albany 08-09 

Total National Science foundation 

Corporation for Nationa l and Community Service: 

Direct Programs: 

RSVP 06-09 

Passed through Kentucky Cabinet for Health and 

f amily Services: 

Promise Corps 07-09 

Chen-NKURF-Sport 09 

08-23 

PO2 730 0800014 292 2 

PO2 730 0800014292 2 

Total Corporation fo r National and Community 

Service 

Corporation for Public Broadcasting 

Di rect Programs: 

Hitchcock-CPB-CSG-Radio 08/09 

Total Corporation fo r Public 13roadcasting 

Small Business Administration: 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research 

foundat ion: 

SBDC Federal UKRf- 08/09 

SIJDC Federal 07/08 

Total Small Business Administratio n 

6-603001-Z00l 8-25 

304 81 04 236-08-308 

63 

Cf-DA 

Number 

47.050 

47,075 

94.002 

94.006 

94.006 

11 .550 

59.037 

59.037 

Federal 

Expenditures 

7,328 

687 

130 731 

100,867 

366,857 

112 

366 969 

467 836 

69,779 

69 779 

102,386 

24,761 

127 147 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures o f Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Gran tor/Pass Through 

Grantor/Prog:ram or C luste r Title 

U.S. Department of Justice: 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research 

Foundation : 

Pass Through 

Nu mber 

Hail-Hometown Security 05/8 304 6981600-06-4 28 

Passed through Kentucky State Police: 

Webb-KY Network-KSP 08/10 2008-AH -FX-0044 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 

Passed through Kentucky Governors Highway Safety Program: 

Krug - High Risk 07/09 2007-AH-FX-0027 

Total U.S. Depa rtment of Transportation 

Appalachian Regional Commission: 

Direct Programs: 

KY /\HED-Duvall 04-07 

DeMoss-ARC 09 

Passed through East Tennessee State University: 

Lange-/\ TP 08-09 

Total Appa lachian Regional Commission 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 

Direct Programs: 

J-la il-ACRP 04-06 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 

64 

220007-05-2 

CFDJ\ 

Number 

16.560 

16.727 

16.727 

23.001 

23.001 

23.011 

14.243 

Federa l 

Expenditures 

26,546 

1,976 

28 522 

54,348 

54 348 

189,582 

3 441 

193,023 

3 967 

196 990 

45,259 

45 259 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expend itures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Gran tor/Pass Th rough 

Grantor/Prog:ram or Cluster Title 

U.S. Department of Labor: 

Pass 1l1rough 

Number 

Passed Through U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Sloan - HUD Youthbuild 07-08 

Passed through Buffalo Trace Area Development District: 

Reynolds-Todays Youth 08/09 FY09-5245 

Passed through Kentucky Department of Education: 

LAMBERT-KDE-TRAINING 08 PO2 540 0800017154 1 

Total U.S. Department of Labor 

U.S. Department of the lnterior: 

Passed through Kentucky Department of Fish and 

Wi ld li fe: 

Eisen-USFWS 07-08 

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 

National Aeronautics and Space Administration: 

Passed through Western Kentucky University: 

Pannuti-NASA-WKU-Chandra 08/09 

Mason-NASA-WKU-Mars JI 08/09 

Panja WKU NASA 07/09 

Pannuti WKU NASA 07/09 

Pannu ti-NASA-WKU-Radio 08/09 

Malphrus-Delgado 08/09 

Malphrus-Carter 08/09 

Malphrus-Brown 08/09 

Pannuti-NASA-WKU-Cont 08/09 

Malphrus-Travel 09 

MOA 0700009065 

WKU 516171-08-110 

WKU 516171-08-108 

WKU 516171-08-91 

WKU 516171-08-92 

WKU 516202-09-05 

WKU 516171-09-117 

WKU 516171-09-1119 

WKU 516171-09-1]8 

WKU 516171-08-106 

WKU 6161 71-09-007 

65 

CFDA 

Number 

17.274 

17.259 

84.350 

15.634 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

43.001 

Federal 

Expenditures 

338,963 

104,875 

5,371 

449 209 

9,749 

9 749 

14,025 

13,605 

13,336 

11,894 

9,426 

9,375 

9,256 

4,000 

2,250 

106 

87,273 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federa l Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Gran tor/Pass Through 

Gran tor/Program or Cluster Title 

Passed through Chandra X-Ray Center: 

Pannuti X-RAY Ctr 07/08 

Total National Aeronautics and 

Space Adm inistration 

U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Direct Programs: 

Jones-Distance Learning 08/09 

Morley-USDA 08/10 

Pass Through 

Number 

NNX07AU32G 

Passed through Kentucky Education and Workforce 

Development Cabinet - Department of Education: 

Cady-Upward Bound Food 08/09 103-X30-999-SU 

Upward Bound rood-KDE 08 103X30999SU 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Natio nal Endowment fo r the Arts: 

Direct Programs: 

Collinsworth-NEA 06-08 

Passed through Southern Arts f-oundation: 

Towell-NEA-Southern Arts 08/09 3336-2009 

Total National Endowment for the Arts 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency: 

Passed through Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet : 

Wright-Laboratory CRT 08/10 08 00019604 

Wright-Principal Lab 08/10 08 00019593 

66 

CFDA 

Number 

43.001 

10.855 

10.769 

10.558 

10.558 

45.024 

45.024 

66.468 

66.468 

Federal 

Expenditures 

32,872 

120 145 

29,015 

25 647 

54,662 

13,417 

5 006 

18,423 

73 085 

3,813 

3 060 

6 873 

55,253 

28024 

83,277 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Grantor/Pass Through 

Grantor/Pro~ram or Cluster Title 

Passed lhrough Kentucky Divis ion of Water: 

Haight-Triplett Creek 08/09 

Passed through University of Louisville Research 

Foundation: 

Reeder-ULRF 05-06 

Pass Through 

Number 

C9994861-08 

G03-1016-07 

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

National Ins titute of Health: 

Direct Programs: 

Dennis-N IH-Biogenesis 08/10 

White - NIH AMP 07/10 

Passed through Unive rsity of Louisville Research 

f oundation: 

KBRIN-INBRE-Harc 09/10 

KBRIN-INBRE Mattingly 09/10 

KBRIN-INBRE Fultz 09/10 

Total National Institute of Health 

U.S. Geological Survey: 

Direct Progrnms: 

Parkansky-USGS 05/09 

Parbnsky-USGS 07/11 

Passed through America View, Inc. 

McMichael-America View 08/09 

Passed through U.S. Department of the Interior: 

Mason-USGS-DOI 08/09 

AV08-KY01 

08HQAC0048 

67 

CFDA 

Number 

66.460 

66.460 

93.859 

93.279 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

15.808 

15.808 

15.808 

15.810 

federal 

Expenditures 

42,312 

628 

126217 

85,646 

29 799 

115,445 

25,656 

7,831 

4 247 

37,734 

153179 

61,443 

22 439 

83,882 

11,359 

4 995 



MOREHEAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Gran tor/Pass Through 

Granto r/Pro~ram or Cluster Title 

Passed through University of Kentucky 

Research f oundation: 

McMichael - USGS 07/08 

Total U.S. Geological Survey 

Total Expenditures of Federa l Awards 

Pass Through 

Number 

304 6989200-07-464 

68 

CFDA 

Number 

15.805 

Federal 

Expenditures 

4169 

104,405 

$57,238,813 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to Schedu le of Expenditures o f Federal Awards 

1. Basis of Presentation 

l11e accompanying schedu le of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Morehead 
State University (the "University") and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance w ith the requirements of OMil Circu lar A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Govemments and Non-profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ 

from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial s tatements . 

2. Federal Student Loan Programs 

Loans made by the University to eligible students under the Federal Perkins Loan Program and federal 
student loans issued by the Federal Direct Loan Program during the year ended June 30, 2009 are summarized 

as fo llows: 

Federal Perkins Loan Program: 

Loans disbursed 

Federal Direct Loan Program: 
Federal Subs idized Stafford Loans 
Federal Unsubsidized Stafford Loans 
Federal Plus Loans 

$ 

$ 

694,584 

26,687,313 
6,792,377 

644,751 

As of June 30, 2009, the University had loans outstand ing, in the amou nt of $3,650,033 with an allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $91,175 under the Federal Perkins Loan Program. 
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DEA DORTON FORD 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of financial S tatements Performed in Accordance with Covemment A11diti11g Standards 

Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 

Morehead State Univers ity 
Morehead, Kentucky 

We have audited the financial statements o f Morehead State Univers ity (the University) as of and for the years 
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2009. We conducted our 
aud its in accordance with auditing s tandards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
s tandards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Aurliting Stnnrlnrds, issued by the Comptroller 
Genera l o f the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's interna l control over financial reporting as 
a basis for des igning our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
sta te ments, but not fo r the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Univers ity's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University's internal control over financial re porting. 

Our consideration o f internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose d escribed in the 
preceding pa ragraph and would not necessa rily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be s ignificant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we 
identified a certa in d eficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we consider lo be a s ignificant 
deficiency. 

A control deficiency exists when the d esign or operation o f a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assig ned fu nctions, lo prevent or d etect misstatements on a timely basis. 
A s ignificant deficiency is a control d e fi ciency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
Uni versity's ability to initia te, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, such that there is m ore than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of 
the University's financial s ta tements that is mo re than inconsequential w ill not be prevented or detected by the 
University's internal control. We consider the deficiency described in the accompany ing schedule of findings and 
questioned costs to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial repo rting, item 09-01. 

A material weakness is a s ignificant d eficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement o f the financial statements will not be prevented or detected 
by the University's internal control. 
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Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 

Pagc2 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose d escribed in the 
firs t paragra ph o f this section and would not necessarily identify all defi ciencies in the internal control that might 
be s ignificant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all s ignificant deficiencies that are also 
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that the s ignificant deficiency described above is not 
a material weakness. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part o f obtaining reasonable assurance abo ut whether the University 's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, w e perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provis ions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance w ith which could have a direct and material effect on the d etermination of 
financial s tatement amounts. However, provid ing an opinion o n compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective o f our audit, and accordingly, we d o not express such an opinion. The results of o ur tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required lo be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

The Univers ity's response to the finding identified in o ur audit is d escribed in the accompanying schedule of 
find ings and questioned costs. We d id no t aud it the Univers ity's response and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it. 

l11is report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Rege nts, audit committee, management 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone o ther than these specified parties. 

October 29, 2009 
Lexingto n, Kentucky 
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DE t\ N D O H T O N ii F O R D 

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance with 0MB Circular A-133 

Members of the Board of Regents and 

Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 
Morehead Sta te Universi ty 

Morehead, Ken tucky 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance o f Morehead Sta te Univers ity (the "University") with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
S11pple111e11t that are applicable to each o f its major federa l programs for the yea r ended June 30, 2009, except those 
requirements discussed in the fourth paragraph below. The Univers ity's majo r federal programs are identified in 
the summary o f aud itors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and qu estioned costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regula tions, contracts and g rants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibi lity of the Univers ity's m anagement. Our respons ibility is to express an opinion 

on the University's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance w iU1 auditing s tandards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govem11w1t Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptrolle r General o f the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profi t Orga11i:atin11s. Those s tandards and 0 MB C ircu lar A-133 require that w e plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assu rance about whether noncompliance w ith the ty pes o f compliance requirements referred to 
above that cou ld have a direct ,md material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University's compliance with those requirements and performing 
su ch o ther procedures, as we cons idered necessary in the circumstances. We be lieve that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion . Our aud it d oes no t provide a legal determination on the University's 

compliance wit h those requirements . 

In o ur opinion, Morehead State Univers ity complied, in all material respects, w ith the requirements referred to 
above tha t are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009, other than those 
requirements discussed in the follo w ing parag raph. However, the results of our auditing procedures d isclosed 
an ins tance of noncompli ance wi th those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with 0 MB 
Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cos ts as item 09-

02. 

We did no t audi t the Univers ity's compliance w ith requirements governing the maintaining contact with and 
bi lling borrowers and processing d eferment and cancellation requests and payments for the Perkins Loan 
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Members of the Board of Regents and 

Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, Pres ident 

Page 2 

Program. Those requirements govern functions that are performed by University Accounting Service, LLC 
(UAS). Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to compliance with those 

requirements, the scope o f o ur \Vork ,vas not sufficient to enable us to express, and we d o no t express, an opinion 

on compliance with those requirem ents. UAS's compliance with the requireme nts gove rning the functions tha t it 

pe rforms for the University was examined by other accountants whose repo rt has been furnished to us. The 

report of the other accountants indicates that compliance with those requ irements was examined in accordance 

w ith the Department of Education's Audit Guide, Complia11ce A11dils (Alleslntion E11gagc111ents) of Federal St11de11t 
Fina11cial Assistance Programs at Participating l11stit11tions a11d lnstit11tio11 Servicers. Based on our rev iew o f the 

service o rgan iza tion accountant's report, we have d e termined that a ll of the compliance requ irements included in 

the Co111pli1111ce S11pple111ent tha t are applicable to the majo r program in ·which the U niversity participates are 

;id dressed in either our report o r the report of the service o rganization accountants. further, based on our review 

of the service organization accountant's report, we ha ve determined tha t it does not conta in any findings of 
noncomplia nce that would have a direct and m a te ria l effect on the University's majo r program. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of fl.forehead S tate University is responsible fo r esta blish ing and maintaining effective inte rnal 

contro l over complia nce w ith requirem ents of laws, regu la tion s, contracts and grants applic.ible to federal 

programs. In p lanning and performing our audit, we considered the University's inte rnal control over 

compliance with requirements tha t cou ld have a direct and m a terial effect on a majo r federal program in order to 
d ete rmine o ur auditing proced ures for the purpose of expressing our o pinion on compliance, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecti veness of internal control over compliance. Accord ing ly, we do 

not express a n opinion on the effectiveness o f the Univers ity's internal control over compliance. 

Requ irements governing the maintaining contact w ith and billing borrowers a nd processing de ferment and 

ct1ncella ti on requests .ind payments for the Federal Perkins Loan Progra m ;i re performed by UAS. In te rnal 

contro l over compliance re la ting to such functions was reported on by o the r accountants in accordance w ith the 
U.S. Department of Educc1tion's Audit G uide, Co111plim1ce Audits (Attestation £11gageme11ts) of Federal Student 
fi11m1cinl Assistance Programs at Participating Jnstituti011s ami /11stil11tio11 Servicers. A copy of the service organization 

account ant's report has been furnished to us. However, the scope o f our work d id not extend to interna l contro l 

mnint.iined ill UAS. 

O ur cons ide ration of inte rnal contro l over compliance was for the limited purpose d escri bed in the preceding 

pt1ragr<1ph and would no t necessarily identify all deficiencies in inte rna l contro l that might be significan t 
deficiencies o r material weaknesses as defined be low. However, c1s discussed belm-v we identified a certain 

deficiency in int ernal contro l over compliance th c1 t we consider to be a signifi cant deficiency. 

A control deficiency in a University's interna l control over compliance exis ts w hen the design or operation of a 
contro l does no t a llow mam1gemcnt o r employees, in the normal course of performing the ir assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect noncompliance with a ty pe of complia nce requirement of a federal prog ram on a timely bas is . 

A significant deficiency is a contro l deficie ncy, o r combination o f control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 

Universi ty 's ability to adminis te r a federal program such tha t the re is m o re tha n a rem ote like lihood that 
noncompliance with a type of complia nce requirement of a federa l prog ram tha t is more than inconsequentia l 
wi ll not be prevented or detected by the University's inte rna l control. We cons ider the de fic iency in internal 
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Members o f the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 

Pagc3 

control over compliance described in the accompanying schedu le of find ings and questioned costs as item 09-02 
to be a s ignificant deficiency. 

A material weakness is a s ignificant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood tha t a material noncompliance with a type o f compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented or detected by the University's inte rnal control. We do not consider the deficiency 
d escribed in the ctccompanying schedu le of findi ngs and questioned costs to be a material weakness. 

We noted certain other matte rs that we reported to manngemcnt of the University in a separa te le tter dated 
October 29, 2009. 

The University's response to the finding identified in our audit is d escribed in the accompanying schedule of 

findings and questi oned costs. We did not audit the Univers ity's response and, accord ingly, we express no 
opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the info rmation and use of the l3o.ird of Regents, audit committee, management 
and federal award ing agencies and pass-th rough entities ;ind is not in tended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

October 29, 2009 
Lexington, Kentucky 
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MOREH EAD STATE UN IVERSITY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Section I - Summary of Aud itors' Resu lts (under Section .S0S(d)(l ) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Financial Sta tements: 

a. The type of report issued on the financial statements: Unqualifi ed O pinion 

b. Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses: Yes 

c. Non-compliance which is material to the financial s ta tements: No 

Federal Award: 

d. Internal control over majo r programs: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered lo be material weaknesses: Yes 

e. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualifi ed Opinion 

f. Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of 0MB 
Circular A-133: Yes 

g. Major programs: 
Studen t fi nan cial Aid Custer: 

Federal Pell Gran t, CFDA 84.063 
Federa l Work Study, CFDA 84.033 
Federal Supplementa l Educational Opportunity Grant, CFDA 84.007 
Federal Perkins loan, CFDA 84.038 
Federa l Direct Loan P rogram, CfDA 84.268 
Academ ic Competi tiveness Grant, CFDA 84.376 
National Science and Mathematics Access to Reta in Talent Grant, 

CFDA 84.375 
Teache r Education Assistance for College and H igher Educati on Grant, CFDA 84.379 

Trio Cluster. 
Stu dent Support Services, CFDA 84.042 
Talent Search, CFDA 84.044 
Upward Bound, CFDA 84.047 
Commonwealth Educational Opportunity Center, CFDA 84.066 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERS ITY 

Schedule of Findings and Ques tioned Costs, continued 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results (under Section .505(d)(1) of 0MB Circular A-133), continued: 

g . Major programs, continued: 
Gear Up: 

Gear Up, CFDA 84.334 

h. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $693,431 

i. Audi tee qualified as a low-risk auditee: No 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (under Section .505(d)(2) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance w ith Goven1111e11/ Auditing 
S tnndnrds: 09-01 

Finding 09-1: 

Condition: 

During our audit, we noted that Morehead State Univers ity has a laptop lease progrnm where s tudents 
can lease laptop computers from the University with the ability to purchase this laptop over the life of the 
lease. C urrently the purchase of these laptops is being c1ccounted for in auxiliary expenses c1nd the lease 
revenue each semester is being recogn ized in aux iliary revenues. There nre specific accounting 
pronouncements tha t set fo rth the appropria te way to account for these leases which recognize a 
receivable for future expected lease receipts and not recognizing any expenses. The only revenue that 
would be recognized would be the amount received by the Univers ity over the cost of the laptop. 

Effect: 

Over time, the d ifferences in accounting will net to zero impact in the ne t assets but in any given year 
there wil l be differences in the fund balance if this was accounted for correctly. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the University review the accounting for these leases and determine the future 
expectations of this program and consider adjusting the financial s tatements accord ingly. 

Management's Response: 

We agree that the accounting for these leases needs to be reviewed, if we p lan to continue this program. 
The laptop lease program started as a pilot program and the Univers ity is planning to make a d ecision 
about the future of the program this fall. These discussions will be directed by the Provos t, the Vice 
Presid ent for Administration & Fisca l Services and the Vice President for Planning and Budgets. If the 
University decides to continue the laptop lease prog ram, we ,,viii review the accounting fo r these leases 
and make necessary adjustments to the financinl statements for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2010. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedu le of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (un der Section .505(d)(3) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards: 09-02 

Finding 09-02: 

Federal Program: U.S. Department of Education 
f-edera l Pel l Grant, CFDA 84.063 
Federa l Work Study, CFDA 84.033 

Condition: 

Federal Supplemental Educntional Opportunity Grant, CFO/\ 84.007 
federal Perkins Loan, CFDA 84.038 
f-edera l Direct Loan Program, C FDA 84.268 

During the audit, we noted that students not meeting one of the University's satisfactory academ ic 

progress (SAP) quantitative requirements were not being identified and properly placed on federal 
financia l a id probation due to a system programming error. Once the programming error was 
corrected, management identifi ed 97 students who were originally not picked up by the system as 
being on federal financial aid probation who should have been. Of U1ese students, 10 received $36,859 
of federal funds during their summer term. After being notified they were being put on federal 
financia l aid probation, a ll 10 s tudents appealed their SA P probation and a ll were approved for 
mitigating circumstances. 

Criteria: 

The p rovisions of§ 668.34, § 668.32(£) and §668.16(e) s tate that the student mus t main ta in satisfactory 
p rogress in his or her cou rse of s tudy according to the ins titution's published standards of satisfactory 
progress. It is also stated that the ins titution is required to establish reasonable standards for 
measuring whether an otherwise eligible s tudent is maintaining satis factory progress in his or her 
ed ucational program. The purpose of determining whether the student is making academic progress is 
necessary for the s tudent to be e ligible for financial a id. 

Effect: 

Several students were not originally put on SAP probation causing ineligible students to initially 
receive federal funds. 
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Finding 09-02, continued: 

Cause: 

·n1ere is not an internal control in place to verify that the financial aid software is properly calcula ting 
students who meet or fail to meet MSU's SAP requirements. Some s tudents who did not meet SAP 
were no t originally identified and were initially improperly disbursed financial aid. 

Recommendation: 

We noted that the University rel ies on its soft wa re to properly identify students who meet and those 
that fail the Univers ity's SAP requirement. We recommend that the University establish ,rn internal 
control to verify that students w ho are not meeting the requirements arc identified prior to the next 
disbursement o f federal funds. 

Management's Response: 

The! Office of Enrollment Services will continue to monitor the financial ;iid software (Oatatel 
Colleague) to ensure that the system is accura tely assessing student records for eligibility for Federal 
student aid. Although the Office had tes ted various scenarios for calculating Sntisfactory Academic 
Progress (SAP) prior to running the calcu la tio n program, the aforementioned scenario had not been 

identified during testing due to the relatively smnll number of s tudents with that particular situation. 
The purchased software had to be modified to fit our policy and procedure of annual review. During 
this modification, an error occurred that allowed students in the aforementioned g roup to be eva luated 

incorrectly. The error was corrected when identified and the s tudents w ere processed in the usual 
manner. 

The Office of Enrollment Services will determine all possible scenarios with regard to SAP and create 
que ries to pull samples of students who may be affected by the criteria. The Office will then run the 
SAP Calculation program in a lest environment and compare the results to the sc1mples. Once ii has 
been determined that the program is working properly with all scenarios, the program will be run in 
the live environment. This procedure should ensure that a ll circumstances are nccounted for in the 
SAP Calculation program and ;ill students are evaluated properly 
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Finding 08-01: 

Condition: 

During our audit procedure the Univers ity s tated tha t the schedule of fixed assets did no t reconcile to the 

general ledger and that an adjus tment had been made to reconcile the d iffe rences through a fixed asset 

d e le tion account. Our audit procedures revealed that the fixed asset schedu le used to reconcile the fixed 

asset register to the genera l led ger at year-end was not complete. 111e existing fixed asset schedule 
excluded numerous additions made during the 2008 fi scal year. 

Recommendation: 

This situa tion should be remedied as soon as poss ible by implementing a valida tion control to test the 

reports used in reconciling fixed assets for each reporting p eriod. We furt he r recommend tha t the 

Univers ity extend these validation controls to a ll mate ria l accounts affecting the financia l s tatements. 

C urrent Stanis: 

We noted tha t this issue has been resolved and was not repeated during the current year audit. 

Finding 08-02: 

federal Program: U.S. Dep;utment of Ed ucation 

Federal Direct Loan Program, CFO/\ 84.268 

Condition: 

During the audit, we no ted that students who g radua ted during the school year were not reported to 

lenders or guaranty agencies as graduated . As a result, s tudents who graduated and did not return for 

the next te rm were lis ted as withdrawn as of the end of the graduated term. These students who 

g radua ted in the Spring term were not reported as having ceased to enroll until 4 months after their 
da te of graduation. Students who gradua ted but re turned for the n ext term were not shown as 

g radua ted or withdrawn; they were shown w ith the enro llment s tatus for the next term. 

Recommendation: 

We noted tha t the University sends status change reports to the National C learinghouse who then 
sends them on to lenders, guaranty agencies, etc.; however, the Univers ity has the ultimate 
responsibility to report to these third parties. Therefore, we recommend that the Univers ity establish 
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Finding 08-2, continued: 

Recommendation, continued: 

an interm1l control to verify that students who receive a lozin who either did no t enroll or ceased to be 

enrolled on a t least a half-time basis are reported to the Secretary o r the guaranty agency within a 

timely matter after these fi les are sent to the National C learinghouse. 

Current Stzitus: 

We noted tha t the University corrected the way they sent grziduate fil es to the Nationzil Cleziringhouse 

in order to report s tudent stzitus changes. During our audit, we did not note any instances of 

noncomplizince wi thin this area. 
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